Three First National Plaza UNGARETTI  HARRIS LLP

l |NG ARE l l I 70 Wes1 Madison - Suite 3500 CricaGo. ILLINOIS
Chicago, lllinois 60602.4224 HIgAG.
a' HARRIS Telephone: 312.977.4400 SRINGRIELD, LLLINOLS

Fax: 312.977.4405

wwwuhlaw.com WASHINGTOM, D.C.
SAM VINSON
312,977.4388 R E
svinson@uhlaw.com C F ' VED
June 6, 2012 - JUN 0 7 2012

HEALIn raCiT

VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS SERVICES REWEw'ch;:m
Courtney Avery
Administrator
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Re: Incompleteness Determination, Mercer County Hospital, Project 12-044

Dear Ms. Avery:

This letter is in response to your letter of May 14, 2012, a copy of which is attached for your
reference, indicating that the Certificate of Need ("CON") application for the discontinuation of
the long term care and intensive care categories of services submitted by Mercer County Hospital
(the "Hospital") and the Mercer County Board is incomplete.

Your letter explains that the CON application was deemed incomplete by the Health Facilities
and Services Review Board ("HFSRB") staff because the "applicant failed to provide
information regarding previous transactions not presented to the [HFSRB] for prior approval.”
The letter, however, references Project Number E-003-12, the change of ownership Certificate of
Exemption ("COE") application for the Hospital submitted by Genesis Health System ("GHS")
and GMCM, and Project Number E-004-12, the COE application for Mercer County Nursing
Home submitted by GHS and GSLM. Your letter adds that the "applicant did not furnish a
Certificate of Need Assessment Form upon request from [HFSRB] Staff." The letter also states
that the "applicant's 10-business day window for submittal of additional information expired on
May 14, 2012."

By way of authority for this incompleteness determination, your letter cites Section
1130.620(D)(1)(I) of the Health Facilities Planning Procedural Rules (the "Rules"). This section
governs CON applications and states that:

Upon receipt of an application for permit, [the HFSRB staff] shall determine
whether the application is complete or incomplete. An application for any project
shall be deemed complete within 10 business days after receipt if all of the
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following have been met: ... verification that the applicant has fulfilled all
compliance requirements with all existing permits that have been approved by
[HFSRB]...."

Based on email correspondence received from Mike Constantino on May 3, 2012, it appears your
primary concern with the CON application is that, in 2010 when GHS, Mercer County, Illinois
and the Hospital executed an Option Agreement providing GHS with the option to acquire
certain of the Hospital's assets and liabilities, GHS did not apply to the HFSRB for a COE for a
change of ownership. Mr. Constantino’s email explained that the HFSRB staff has considered a
health facility's change of ownership to occur upon execution of an option agreement. As
addressed in great detail in the enclosed memorandum to you and Mr. Constantino, GHS was not
required to submit a COE application in November, 2010 because, although an option agreement
could be structured such that the execution of the option triggers the acquisition, the
GHS/Mercer County Option Agreement did not, and therefore did not trigger a change of
ownership under the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Act (the "Act") or the Rules. We are not
aware of any other outstanding compliance requirements of the Hospital.

We further understand that a second reason that the HFSRB staff declared the CON application
to be incomplete is the fact that GHS and GMCM did not furnish HFSRB staff with a Certificate
of Need or Exemption to Permit Assessment of Applicability (the "Assessment”) form. As also
explained in further detail in the enclosed memorandum to you and Mr. Constantino, if their
COE application is approved and GMCM becomes the owner, operator and licensee of the
Hospital, GHS and GMCM intend to pursue the referenced modernization project. GHS and
GMCM are not able to provide an Assessment form at this time: the proposed project currently is
not a GHS/GMCM project, as neither owns the Hospital. Further, while we respectfully
acknowledge Mr. Constantino's statement that the modernization commitment "will require the
submittal” of the Assessment form, even if the form is required, which we do not believe it is
under the Act or the Rules, neither GHS nor GMCM have the ability to submit this form at this
time, as neither owns the Hospital. Mercer County cannot submit the Assessment form, either,
as it is not the entity that made the moderization commitment.

Some clarification may be helpful. The applicants to Project Number E-004-12, GSLM and
GHS, believe that they have provided the HFSRB staff with all requested items with respect to
the COE application for the Nursing Home. The Option Agreement does not relate to the
proposed change of ownership of the Mercer County Nursing Home; the asset purchase
contemplated therein does not include assets of the Nursing Home. Also unrelated to the
proposed change of ownership of the Nursing Home is GHS' and GMCM's intent to pursue a
modernization project of the Hospital at an approximate cost of $11,500,000.

UHDOCS 2180848v3
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In conclusion, on behalf of Mercer County Hospital and the Mercer County Board, the applicants
for Project 12-044, we respectfully request the HFSRB staff to deem the application complete, as
we believe the applicants provided all necessary information to the HFSRB and its staff.

Please do not hesitate to contact me to discuss or if you require anything further.
Sincerely,
Sam Vinson
cc:  Judith Mondello
Ted Rogalski
Claudette P. Miller
Lynn Gordon

Enclosures

UHDOCS 2180848v3




STATE OF ILLINOIS
HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

525 WEST JEFFERSON ST. # SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62761 ® (217) 782-3516

May 14, 2012
CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Sam Vinson, Attorney
Ungaretti & Harris, LLP
70 West Madison Street, Suite 3500
Chicago, IL 60602

RE: Incompleteness
Health Facilities Planning Act
PROJECT: 12-044 Mercer County Hospital, Aledo
APPLICANT(S): Mercer County Hospital

Dear Mr. Vinson:

This is to acknowledge receipt of your application for permit under the Illinois Health
Facilities Planning Act. Your application, received on May 1, 2012, was deemed
incomplete as of May 14, 2012. The State Agency notes the following;

Section 1130.620(D)(1)(i) Technical Assistance, Letter of Intent, Classification,
Completeness Review, and Review Procedutres
D) Completeness Review

1) Upon receipt of an application for permit, IDPH shall determine
whether the application is complete or incomplete. An application
for any project shall be deemed complete within 10 business days
after receipt if all of the following have been met:

i. verification that the applicant has fulfilled all compliance
requirements with all existing permits that have been
approved by HFSRB;

The applicant failed to provide information regarding previous transactions not
presented to the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board for prior approval (E-003-
12, Mercer County Hospital, and E-004-12 Mercer County Nursing Home)]. The
applicant did not furnish a Certificate of Need Assessment Form upon request from
Board Staff. The applicant’s 10-business day window for submittal of additional
information expired on May 14, 2012,




Per 77IAC 1130.620(d)(5): If the application is deemed complete, the date of completion
shall initiate the review period. If the application is deemed incomplete, the applicant
shall be allowed 45 days from the date of receipt of the notification to provide all
necessary information to complete the application. Upon receipt of all additional
information requested, IDPH shall again review the application for completeness and
shall notify the applicant of its decision. If IDPH finds that the application remains
incomplete at the end of the allotted response period, the application shall be declared
null and void, and all fees paid forfeited.

Should you have any questions regarding your application, please contact our office at
(217) 782-3516 or TTY (800) 547-0466 for hearing impaired only.

Sincerely,

loubey. Koy

Courtney Avery, Administrator
INinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
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MEMORANDUM

TO: Courtney Avery, [llinois Department of Public Health
Michael Constantino, Illinois Department of Public Health

FROM: Sam Vinson
Valerie Breslin Montague

CC: Judith Mondello, Vice President, Legal Affairs, Genesis Health System
Claudette P. Miller, Ungaretti & Harris
Lynn Gordon, Ungaretti & Harris
George Roate, Illinois Department of Public Health

DATE: June 6, 2012

RE: Certificate of Exemption Application for Change of Ownership of Mercer County
Hospital, Project E-003-12

This Memorandum is the additional follow up referenced in our letter of May 9, 2012 and
responds to the issues raised in items 1 and 4 of your email of May 3, 2012, and request made in
the May 30, 2012 correspondence from Courtney Avery. (Copies of the May 9, 2012 letter,
May 3, 2012 email and May 30, 2012 letter are attached for your reference.) In particular, this
Memorandum responds to (i) the question of why the approval of the Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board ("HFSRB")} was not sought before execution of the Option
Agreement between Genesis Health System ("GHS"), Mercer County, Illinois and Mercer
County Hospital (the "Hospital”), and (ii) the statement that the "commitment to spend
$11,500,000 in capital improvements wiil require the submittal of an assessment of applicability”
to the HFSRB staff. Regarding Ms. Avery's May 30" request for the complete Option
Agreement with all schedules and exhibits, we addressed this in our May 9, 2012
correspondence, a copy of which is attached hereto. In short, our original application submission
included the complete Option Agreement with all schedules and exhibits.

Please direct any follow up inquiries in this matter to Sam Vinson, at (312) 977-4388 or
svinson{@uhlaw.com, or Valerie Breslin Montague, at (312) 977-4485 or
vbmontague@uhlaw.com.

L. Executive Summary

We are hopeful that the following additional facts and analyses will allow the parties to move
forward expeditiously on this very time-sensitive transfer of the Hospital. The impetus to this
transaction is the critical need to immediately improve the financial status of this important
critical access hospital in Mercer County in order to ensure continued operations and to facilitate
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long-delayed and necessary facility improvements, Moreover, cach month that this project is
delayed, Mercer County residents continue to fund pension obligations at a rate of approximately
$100,000 per month from a property tax levy. The change of ownership eliminates this
additional tax burden on the residents of this community.

As further discussed below and with respect to the approval question, we respectfully submit that
there was no requirement to obtain HFSRB approval in November, 2010 when the Option
Agreement was executed. First, under the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Act (the "Act"), the
Health Facilities Planning Procedural Rules (the "Rules"), Illinois case law, and the express
fanguage of the Option Agreement itself, HFSRB approval was not required until the Exercise of
the Option (each as defined below) in April, 2012, for which GMCM did timely file a Certificate
of Exemption ("COE") application. Next, Illinois law clearly distinguishes between option
agreements and agreements to purchase but, even if it did not, the Option Agreement itself was
not a binding agreement on Mercer County and the Hospital until March 2012 when the County
Board-required contingency concerning future disposition of the facility was added, as further
discussed herein. And, as noted in our application, the relevant documents contained the requisite
HFSRB approvals as a precondition to close. In any event, the parties would not have been able
to file a "complete” COE application at the time the Option Agreement was executed, because
much of the information required as part of the COE application was not generated until the
Option was exercised in April, 2012,

Further, with respect to the statement concemning capital improvements, while we agree that any
modernization project at the Hospital needs to be analyzed to determine whether a Certificate of
Need ("CON") or COE application is necessary, we do not agree that GHS' and GMCM's intent
to proceed with a capital improvement project post-Hospital change of ownership requires the
submittal of the Certificate of Need or Exemption to Permit Assessment of Applicability
("Assessment”) form. That being said, the Assessment form and process is helpful and at the
time the relevant parties are moving forward with the projects we will avail ourselves of it, as
necessary. Therefore, we respectfully request that the HFSRB staff continue to process GMCM's
COE application {and that of GSLM) in the normal course, in accordance with applicable laws
and rules.

II. Facts

As a further supplement to our initial application, we submit the following additional facts to
facilitate HFSRB review and understanding of this matter.

UHDOCS 2178926
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On Aprit 27, 2012, GMCM and GHS filed a COE application for the change of ownership of the
Hospital, a 22-bed critical access hospital located in Aledo, Illinois. The "definitive agreement”
for the change of ownership transaction consists of three documents:

» the Option Agreement, executed in November, 2010,
¢ the Addendum to Option Agreement, executed March 6, 2012 (the "Addendum"), and
o the Exercise of Option, executed April 26, 2012 (the "Exercise").

The Option Agreement gives GHS "the option to assume certain assets and liabilities" of Mercer
County, Illinois and the Hospital (the "Option").! One such liability is anticipated to be certain
renovation debt. The Addendum clarifies certain terms of the Option Agreement, including but
not limited to GMCM's assumption of GHS' rights and obligations under the Option Agreement
and certain included assets in the proposed transaction, and it adds certain requirements
necessary to meet Mercer County Board approval of the Option Agreement. 1t also adds
conditions that must be satisfied after the execution of the Option and prior to closing, including
approval by the HFSRB. In the Exercise, GMCM exercises the Option, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the Option Agreement and the Addendum, including HFSRB approval.

III.  The Option Agreement Did Not Trigger A Change Of Ownership

In your May 3, 2012 email, you state that the HFSRB staff "have always considered” the change
of ownership of a health care facility to occur at the approval of an agreement providing for an
option to purchase the health care facility, that it appears that GHS initiated the change of
ownership of the Hospital in November, 2010 and ask "why the transaction occurred” without
HFSRB approval.

The answer to your question lies in the distinction between a true option to purchase (such as the
Option Agreement here) and an agreement to purchase, which may sometimes also be
mistakenly referred to as an "option.” This distinction is recognized both in the statutes and rules
specific to health facility planning in Illinois and in Illinois case law, As outlined below, only an
actual agreement to purchase triggers the need to seek HFSRB approval. Accordingly, the
execution of the Option Agreement in November, 2010 did not trigger a change of ownership
under either the Act or the Rules. When the Option was exercised on April 26, 2012, making a
conditional agreement to purchase, GHS timely applied to the HFSRB for a COE for the

' Option Agreement, Recita! C.

UHDGOCS 2178926
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proposed change of ownership of the Hospital, anticipated to occur on or about September 1,
2012,

A. Statutory and Regulatory Analysis

The Option Agreement alone, without the Exercise executed April 26, 2012, does not meet the
definition of a "change of ownership" under the Act or the Rules. The Act states that "[n]o
person shall construct...a health care facility...without first obtaining a permit or exemption
from the State Board."? "Construction or modification” includes the "change of ownership, of or
by a health care facility."> Under the Act, a change of ownership of a health care facility is "a
change in the person who has ownership or control of a health care facility's physical plant and
capital assets. A change in ownership is indicated by the following transactions: sale, transfer,
acquisition, lease, change of sponsorship, or other means of transferring control."*

The Rules state that a change of ownership is:

a change in the person who has operational control of an existing health care
facility or a change in the person who has ownership or control of a health care
facility's physical plant and capital assets. A change of ownership is indicated by,
but not limited to, the following transactions: sale, transfer, acquisition, leases,
change of sponsorship or other means of transferring control. Examples of
change of ownership include:

a transfer of stock or assets resulting in a person obtaining a majority
interest (i.e., over 50%) in the person who is licensed or certified (if the
facility is not subject to licensure), or in the person who owns or controls
the health care facility's physical plant and capital assets; or

the issuance of a license by [the Illinois Department of Public Health
("IDPH™)] to a person different from the current licensee; or...

any other transaction that results in a person obtaining control of a health
care fa;ci]ity‘s operations or physical plant and capital assets, including
leases.

220 1LCS 3960/5.
* 20 ILCS 3960/3.
20 ILCS 3960/3.
* 77 Il Admin. Code § 1130.140,

UHDOCS 2178926
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The events in November of 2010, when the Option Agreement was executed, do not constitute a
change of ownership under the definitions provided in the Act and the Rules. The Option
Agreement merely provided GHS with the Option to acquire certain assets and liabilities of the
Hospital. It did not change the Hospital's operator. It did not change the entity owning and
controlling the Hospital's physical plant and capital assets. Nothing was sold, transferred or
feased. There was no acquisition or other transfer of control. As the Hospital was and remains a
County-owned facility, a change in sponsorship is not applicable. IDPH did not issue GHS a
license for the Hospital, nor did the Option Agreement give IDPH the authority to do so.

The Rules, in the section addressing the requirements for change of ownership COE applications,
state that: "Prior to any person acquiring or entering into a contract to acquire an existing health
care facility, the person must submit an application for exemption to {the HFSRB]...and receive
approval from [the HFSRB]."® This provision arguably expands upon the statutory basis for a
change of ownership in the Act. Regardless, it has no application here. In November, 2010,
GHS neither acquired, nor entered into a contract to acquire, the Hospital. Instead, GHS, Mercer
County, Illinois and the Hospital entered into a contract to give GHS the Option, at a later date,
upon exercise of the Option, to acquire certain assets and liabilities of the County and the
Hospital. The terms of the Option Agreement are clear: GHS needed to exercise the Option
before any obligation or agreement to purchase arose.” The Option Agreement states that the
parties "agree to complete the transfer of the Included Assets and the assumption of the Included
Liabilities (the "Closing"), under the terms and subject to the conditions, &sic] set forth herein
within ninety (90) days of the Option Exercise Date (the "Closing Date")."” The transfer of the
assets and liabilities of the Hospital will not, and simply cannot, occur prior to the exercise of the
Option. However, as to the Exercise of the Option to acquire certain assets and liabilities of the
Hospital and the issuance of a license for the hospital facility in GMCM's name, we agree that
this is a change of ownership subject to the review of the HFSRB —which is why GMCM timely
filed a COE application.

B. Case Law Analysis

[llinois case law makes clear that, until accepted through an exercise of the option, an offer to
sell in an option contract does not itself become a contract. In Morris v. Goldthorp, the Supreme
Court of 1llinois reviewed a written option agreement which by its terms gave to a prospective
purchaser the exclusive right of sale and the right to purchase certain real property within a

877 11l. Admin. Code § 1130.520(a).
? See, e.g., Option Agreement, Section 3.1.
¥ Option Agreement, Section 3.2.

UHDOCS 2178926
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period of 60 days. ® The prospective purchaser claimed that, because he signed his name at the
foot of the option agreement under the word "Accepted,"” the option became a valid and binding
contract on the part of the seller to convey the property.'® The court held that, by signing the
contract, the prospective purchaser merely accepted the option for what it was, a umlateral offer
that could not and did not become a bilateral agreement by his endorsement." The court
emphasized that, in an option contract, two elements exist: (i) the offer to sell, which does not
become a contract until accepted, and (ii) a contract to leave the offer open for a specnﬁed period
of time."? The court concluded, "The principle is well settled that an option contract is not a
contract of sale within any recognized definition of the term. At best, it only gives the optlon
holder the right to purchase upon the terms and conditions specified in the option agreement."

More recently, in Terraces of Sunset Park, LLC v. Chamberlin, the appellate court reviewed an
agreement between vendors and a prospective purchaser that specified the parties, the property,
the purchase price, the down payment, the closing date, and the acceptable methods of paying the
balance of the purchase price for certain real property but that allowed the prospective purchaser
to walk away from the deal prior to closing by forfeiting only part or all of the down payment.'*
Although the word "option" was not written anywhere in the agreement, the court held that,
where the prospective purchaser had the rlght but not the obligation, to purchase the real
property, the contract was an option contract. © The court affirmed that optlon contracts sell only
the right or privilege to buy certain property at the option of the other party. § The other party
does not receive the property or an mterest therein; rather, it receives the right to call for and
receive the property at its chocsmg

It is possible to understand how some true asset purchase agreements might be confused with
options—and hence the HFSRB's concern that such arrangements not be permissible absent its
approval. Here, however, the Option Agreement is unequivocally an option agreement by its
terms and not an asset purchase agreement. It contains an offer for GHS to assume certain assets
and liabilities of the County and the Hospital upon exercise of the Option and it is a contract to

® Morris v. Goldthorp, 390 111. 186, 190, 60 N.E.2d 857, 859 (1945); Whitelaw v. Brady, 3 11L. 2d 583, 589, 121
N.E.2d 785, 789 (1954); see also Mitziaff v. Midland Lumber Company, 338 Tl\. 575 (1930) (holding that when an
option agreement is executed, a landowner does not then sell the land or any interest in it, or agree to sell, but rather
sells the right or privilege to buy it at the option of the other party).

" Morris, 390 111. at 190, 60 N.E.2d at 859.

"' 1d, at 191, 60 N.E.2d at 859; Whirelaw, 3 111.2d at 589, 121 N.E.2d at 789.

2 Morris, 390111, at 191, 60 N.E.2d at 859.

2 Id, at 192, 60 N.E.2d at 860.

" Terraces of Sunset Park, LLC v. Chamberlin, 399 IIi. App. 3d 1090, 1093, 929 N.E.2d 1161, 1164 (2010).

" Id. at 1094, 929 N.E.2d at 1165,

1d., 929 N.E.2d at 1168,

7 1d., 929 N.E.2d at 1165.

UHDOCS 2178926
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leave the offer open for the specified Option term. GHS did not receive the assets or liabilities of
the County/Hospital or an interest therein by executing the Option Agreement. Rather, it
received the right to assume certain assets and liabilities during the Option term upon exercise of
the Option. As in Morris, GHS' execution of the Option Agreement did not constitute
acceptance or approval of the right to assume certain assets and liabilities. GHS did not, and
could not, make the Option Agreement a bilateral contract for the change of ownership of the
Hospital simply by signing and accepting the agreement. Further, as provided by Terraces of
Sunset Park, the Option Agreement gave GHS the right, but not the obligation, to acquire certain
assets and liabilities of the Hospital. Not until GMCM exercised the option on April 26, 2012
did it approve Mercer County's and the Hospital's "offer to sell” to create a bilateral contract for
the change of ownership of the Hospital. Therefore, execution of the Option Agreement did not
trigger a change of ownership for HFSRB purposes.

C. Terms of Option Agreement and Approval By County Board

The Option Agreement does not effectuate a change of ownership transaction because, by its
own terms, it simply offers GHS only an Option to acquire certain assets and liabilities of the
Hospital at some time in the future, rather than constituting an agreement for the acquisition.
Further, in its resolution approving the Option Agreement, the Mercer County Board approved
the Option Agreement with the caveat that the arrangement be subject to a requirement that, in
the event the Option is exercised and GHS assumes ownership and control of same, GHS retum
the Hospital property to the County if GHS no longer wishes to operate the Hospital.

The Mercer County Board resolution states that the Board approved the Option Agreement "with
the addition of returning the [H]ospital property to the County if [GHS] chooses to leave.” This
requirement was not part of the Option Agreement. Hence, the Option itself was neither fully
approved nor effective until the relevant March 6, 2012 Addendum reflecting the requisite caveat
and clarifying the intent of the parties on this term. Moreover, as stated herein, the Exercise
occurred on April 26, 2012; prior to that time, the proposed transaction did not fall within the
definttion of a "change of ownership" under the Act or the Rules.

D. Convevances Act Requirements Evidence

Because real property was included among the proposed assets to be purchased by GMCM,
Mercer County also is required to comply with the Illinois Conveyances Act (the "Conveyances
Act") in connection with any change of ownership. The Conveyances Act provides that the
Mercer County Board may authorize any officer or member of its Board to execute and deliver
all deeds, grants, conveyances and other instruments necessary to sell, transfer or convey County
real estate. Such documents, if made without fraud or collusion, will be obligatory upon the

UHDOCS 2178926
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County.'B In keeping with its permitted authority under the Conveyances Act, the Mercer
County Board ultimately authorized the change of ownership of the Hospital, pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the Option Agreement and the Addendum, on Apri] 16, 2012, On this
date, the Board authorized its Chairman to execute a deed and any documents necessary to
complete the transaction. Because the proposed change of ownership of the Hospital did not
even have the final approval of the Mercer County Board until April 16, 2012, seeking the
HFSRB approval in November, 2010 would have been premature and impermissible.

E. Regulations and Application Do Not Correspond to Option Agreement

Even if a change of ownership could occur simply upon the execution of an option agreement,
and not the exercise of the option itself, in November of 2010 GHS would not have been able to
provide the HFSRB with the requisite information necessary for a "complete” COE application, '
because such information did not and could not exist and could not have been provided. The
change of ownership of the Hospital was a potential future occurrence. Executing the Option
Agreement did not result in the information necessary for a COE application, as it provided for
the Option for a change of ownership upon exercise of the Option in the future as opposed to an
asset purchase or other change of ownership transaction at the time.

The Rules require a COE application for the change of ownership of a health care facility to
include "documents, such as letters of intent, options to purchase, or lease or sale agreements,
that have been signed by both the applicant and the existing owner that contain a provision that
execution is subject to {HFSRB] issuance of an exemption and that contain the conditions and
terms of the change of ownership."”® The COE application also requests documents detailing
"the terms and conditions of the proposed transaction." Because the parties understood that
additional documentation would be required prior to effectuating the Option, the Option
Agreement was not and is not subject to the approval of HFSRB. The Addendum and the
Exercise both provide that the proposed change of ownership transaction is subject to the
approval of the HFSRB. The parties, aware that additional documentation was necessary to
trigger the acquisition of certain of the Hospital's assets and liabilities, waited to include the term
stipulated by the Mercer County Board in its approval of the Option Agreement: that the County
would have the right to reacquire the Hospital if GHS no longer wishes to operate it. They
inserted this provision into the Addendum only recently and thereby secured requisite board
approval not only of the overall proposed transaction but also of the Option Agreement itself.

765 ILCS 5/16.
" Similarly, GHS would not have been able to provide the requisite information for 2 CON application in November
2010. We limit our analysis to the COE apptication, as the COE application requests less information than the CON
%)plication and GHS still could not have provided all necessary informatien for the COE application in 2010,

77 11l. Admin. Cede § 1130.520(b)(2).

UHDOCS 2178926
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Both the Addendum and the Exercise are essential and integral parts of the full transaction
documents. For these reasons, GHS would not have been able to provide all of the necessary
transaction documents in 2010,

Further, as the COE application is intended to request information regarding pending changes of
ownership as opposed to option transactions that may or may not ever be exercised, completing
other aspects of the COE application in November, 2010 would have presented a number of
challenges. For example, in 2010, GHS would not have been able to verify that it will maintain
ownership of the Hospital for three years, as it had not yet exercised its option to acquire certain
of the Hospital's assets and liabilities and had not entered into a contract to "own" the Hospital in
the first place.”' Similarly, in 2010, GHS could not have certified that the Hospital's charity care
policy would remain in effect for two years, as at that time it had no control over the Hospital's
policies, nor had it entered into any agreement to assume such control at that time.*?

Moreover, applying for a COE in 2010 for a transaction that may occur several years down the
line, if at all, would require the HFSRB staff to provide an opportunity for a public hearing on a
project that may never come to fruition and, if and when it does, issues discussed at a public
hearing may be moot at the true time (or be replaced by other concerns).”? Finally, the Rules
require that the change of ownership must be completed within 12 months from the date of
approval (unless the Board approves an extension).”* In 2010, GHS could not have asserted that
it would comply with the one-year requirement. Therefore, the Option Agreement should not be
considered a change of ownership. If it were, the information required to submit a "complete”
COE (or CON) application would have been unavailable, as the Option Agreement simply did
not place GHS in a position to acquire ownership of the Hospital absent exercise of the Option.

IV.  Capital Improvement Commitment

In your May 3, 2012 email, you also state that "the commitment to spend $11,500,000 in capital
improvements will require the submittal of an assessment of applicability” to the HFSRB staff
(emphasis added). This statement presumably references the narrative in Attachment 3 to the
COE application, which states GHS and GMCM, following the proposed change of ownership
transaction, "intend to facilitate" a modernization of the Hospital at an anticipated cost of
$11,500,000, "subject to all necessary regulatory approvals.”

We are happy to submit the Assessment form. However, to our knowledge, there is no statute or

*! See 77 1ll. Admin. Code §§ 1130.520(b)(5).
2 See 77 11l. Admin. Code §§ 1130.520(b)(7).
B See 77 T, Admin, Code § 1130.520(c).
%77 11, Admin. Code § 1130.520(b)(8).

UHDQCS 2178926
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rule requiring us to do s0.”* Moreover, we have reviewed the modernization proposal and it falls
below the current capital expenditure minimum, and no component otherwise triggers a CON or
COE. If the amount changes or there are other changes that would impact our CON analysis, we
certainly will follow up with you accordingly. Along these lines, as referenced by the language
in the narrative, the proposed project is "subject to," and thus conditioned on, "all necessary
regulatory approvals,” which would include any necessary approval from the HFSRB.

If the Hospital's COE application is approved, and GMCM becomes the owner, operator and
licensee of the Hospital, then GHS and GMCM intend to pursue the referenced modernization
project. Again, at that time, GHS and GMCM, with the assistance of legal counsel and
consultants as necessary, will reassess whether the project requires 2 CON or COE permit. If it
is unclear, or they otherwise need HFSRB assistance in such determination at the time, they will
follow up using the preferred form.

In any event, neither GHS nor GMCM owns the Hospital at this point, and, depending on a
number of factors, the most important of which is the HFSRB approval of the transaction, the
proposed modernization project may never happen. Therefore, submitting the Assessment form
at this time would be premature.

Attachments

* The Act does not require health facilities, or other potential applicants, to complete the Assessment form, nor is
there any such requirement in the Rules. The Assessment form itself indicates that its submission is voluntary. The
front page reads: "This form is neither mandatory nor a substitute for complying with any [HFSRB]
requirements under the Act and the rules [emphasis in original].” The form clarifies that it is designed to help
potential applicants "understand the parameters as to whether or not” a CON or COE is required.

UHDOCS 2178926
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112.977.4134
Igordon@uhlaw.com

May 9, 2012

VIA EMAIL AND FEDERAL EXPRESS

Michael Constantino

Illinois Department of Public Health
525 West Jefferson

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Certificate of Exemption Applications for Change of Owmership of Mercer
County Hospital, Project E-003-12, and Mercer County Nursing Home, Project
E-004-12

Dear Mr. Constantino:

As you know, our firm represents Genesis Health System ("GHS") and its subsidiaries GMCM
and GSLM in connection with their Certificate of Exemption ("COE") applications for the
change of ownership of Mercer County Hospital (the "Hospital™) and Mercer County Nursing
Home (the "Nursing Home"). In response to your email of May 3, 2012, a copy of which is
attached for your reference, 1 am writing to address three of your inquiries (items two, three and
five in your email). As I noted in my emaii to you on May 3™, we wilt follow up separately on
items one and four,

In item two of your email request, you ask for copies of all schedules and exhibits to the
definitive agreements for the change of ownership transaction. All such documents were
submitted with our application. With respect to the change of ownership of the Hospital, the
three agreements that collectively total the "definitive agreement" for the transaction are the
Option Agreement, the Addendum to Option Agreement and finally, the document that then
established the agreement to move forward with the change of control, the Exercise of Option.
Neither the Addendum to Option Agreement nor the Exercise of Option has any exhibits or
schedules. The Option Agreement has four exhibits, each of which was included in the COE
application. As is typical, the Option Agreement also provides for a number of schedules to be
delivered at closing, none of which could or would have been provided by the parties upon

execution of the Option Agreement in 2010 and none of which are or could be available at this
time.




UNGARETTI
g HARRIS

Michael Constantino, [llinois Department of Public Health
May 9, 2012
Page 2

Per Section 3.3(b) of the Option Agreement, and as explained on page 13 of the COE
application (in the Narrative Section/Attachment 3), the schedules referenced in the Option
Agreement are under development and do not become part of the Agreement until the closing
of the change of ownership transaction,

With respect to the change of ownership of the Nursing Home, the Asset Purchase Agreement
is the definitive agreement between the parties. It has two exhibits, both of which were
provided as part of the COE application. The only schedule to the Asset Purchase Agreement
is a Schedule of Patient Trust Accounts which, as is typical, pursuant to Section 23 of the Asset
Purchase Agreement cannot be dated more than seven days prior to the closing of the change of
ownership transaction, and therefore is not available to provide for your review.

Your May 3, 2012 email also asked for the meaning of the term "significant control,” as
referenced on page 11 of the COE applications for each of the Hospital and the Nursing Home.
GMCM and GSLM, the proposed new owners of the Hospital and the Nursing Home,
respectively, have the same corporate structure, in that each is an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation applying for federal tax exemption under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, and each has GHS as its sole corporate member. As we detail in the narratives
to the COE applications on page 11, GHS "has retained certain significant control over”
GMCM and GSLM. The term "significant control” was uséd indicate the fact that GHS has
certain exclusive authority over the actions of GMCM and GSLM and certain approval
authority over actions taken by the Boards of Directors of GMCM and GSLM; these types of
reserved powers are standard for not-for-profit entities with corporate members, particularly
within health systems, and establish control over board appointments, finance, capital, budget,
strategic planning matters, etc. To expand on the summary of the reserved powers provided on
pages 11 and 12 of the COE applications, GHS has the following exclusive reserved powers
over GMCM and GSLM:

[aJ The power to determine the number of directors serving on the
GMCM/GSLM Board and to elect, appoint, remove or fill the vacancies of
such directors. '

[b) The power to present at any regular or special meeting of the
GMCM/GSLM Board (i) one or more amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation or bylaws; (ii) a plan of merger or consolidation by
GMCM/GSLM into or with any other corporation, organization, or
association; (iii) a proposal for any sale, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge,
or other disposition of all, or substantially all, of GMCM/GSLM's assets; or
(iv) a proposal for dissolution of GMCM/GSLM and plan of distribution.

UHDOCS 2169457
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fc]

[d]

[e]

The power to establish system-wide policies and procedures to be followed
by GMCM/GSLM and any affiliates regarding: (i} quality of care; (ii)
finance, (iit) utilization of resources; (iv) managed care contracting; (v)
strategic planning; and (vi) employee benefits;

The power to assess GMCM/GSLM expenses of the Member attributable to

-GMCM/GSLM and any affiliates and to assess to GMCM/GSLM its share

of the general overhead of GHS established in accordance with policies and
procedures adopted by GHS; and

The power to direct GMCM/GSLM to transfer funds to GHS for the
development of system-wide projects in accordance with policies
established by GHS.

In addition, GHS also has approval powers over decisions of the GMCM/GSLM Board of
Directors with respect to the following:

[2]

[b]

[c]

(d]

[f]

UHDOCS 2169457

the interpretation of or any change in a statement of mission, philosophy,
role, or purpose of GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate;

the adoption of amendments to the Articles of Incorporation, bylaws or
other governing documents of GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate;

the merger, dissolution, consolidation or reorganization of GMCM/GSLM
or any affiliate;

the formation or restructuring of affiliates;

the acquisition, sale, lease, transfer, encumbrance, or other alienation of
property of GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate, other than in the usual and
regular course, when such acquisition, sale lease, transfer, encumbrance, or
other alienation is above specified financial levels set in accordance with
policies established by GHS;

the adoption or authorization of annual capital and operating budgets of
GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate as developed by its Board or management or
the making of non-budgeted expenditures in excess of financial levels set in
accordance with policies established by GHS;
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(g]

[h]

i)

(k]

(1]

the incurrence of debt or the guarantee of the debt of another by
GMCM/GSLM or an affiliate which is in excess of such limits as are
established by GHS;

the adoption of a plan of distribution or disposition of the assets of
GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate at the time of its dissolution;

the adoption or approval of strategic and long-range financial plans for
GMCM/GSLM or any affiliate;

the adoption of an internal auditing program for GMCM/GSLM or any
affiliate which is consistent with the internal auditing program established
by GHS;

the amendment, modification or exercise of any right or power hereunder
granted; and

any action which is reserved as the right and power of GHS in the Articles
of Incorporation or the bylaws,

Finally, per your request, attached please find the most recent GHS audited financial statements
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. As you know, GHS has an “A-1" bond rating, proof of
which was submitted with the COE applications.

Please do not hesitate to contact me directly should you need any further information on these
three follow-up inquiries.

Sincerely,

Lynn Gordon

Attachments

 Kepron Dol

cc: Judy Mondello
Ted Rogalski
Claudette P. Miller

UHDOCS 2i69457
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From: Constantino, Mike [Mike.Constantino@lllinois.gov)
Sent: Thursday, May 03, 2012 10:53 AM
To: Gordon, Lynn; Montague, Valerie Breslin
Ce: Reate, George; Avery, Courtney
Subject: Exemption E-003-12, E-004-12
Mr, Gordon:
1. Tam reviewing the exemption applications and [ see the option agreement was approved in November

2010. We have always considered the change of ownership occurring upon the option approval. It
appears to me that you have initiated this change of ownership in November 2010 without State Board
approval. This could result in fines and penalties and could delay these exemption applications. We
need to know why this transaction occurred without State Board approval,

All transaction agreements for change of ownerships must include ALL schedules and exhibits. Please
provide all of the schedules and exhibits that have been identified in the agreement.

I need to know the meaning of “significant control” as referenced on page 11 of the exemption
application.

The commitment to spend $11,500,000 in capital improvements will require the submittal of an
assessment of applicability to the State Board Staff.

We need Genesis Health System most recent audited financial statements.

Mike Constantino

Illinois Department of Public Health
523 West Jefferson

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Fax:{217) 785-4111

Phone:(217) 785-1557
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McGladrey & Pulien, LLP
Certifizd Public Accountants

= McGladrey

independent Auditor's Report

To the Audit and Compliance Committee
Genesis Health System
Davenport, lowa

Woe have audited the accomparying consolidated balance sheets of Genesis Health System and related
organizations (System} as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then endad. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the System’s management. Our responsibliity is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of
Misericordia Assurance Company, Lid., a consolidated subsidiary, which statements reflect total assets
and revenue constituting approximately 4% and 1%, respectively, of the related consolidated totals in
2011 and 2010. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Miserlcordia Assurance Company, Lid.,
is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits In accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audlt to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financlal statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financlal statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report
of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

in our opinion, based on pur audits and the report of the other auditers, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Genesis
Health System and related organizations as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the resuits of thair
operations and their cash fiows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted In the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, effective July 1, 2010 the System adopted the new accounting provisions relating
to consolidation of noncontrolling interests in the consolidated financial statements. The adoption of this
guidance resulted in a retroactive restatement on the consolidated financia! statements,

%C%‘//&f&w./ cer

Davenpor, lowa
Qctober 25, 2011

1
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Genesls Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2011 and 2010

Assets 2041 2010
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 76,241,207 58,090,247
Short-term investments 1,323,887 1,355,211
Recelvables:
Patients, net 79,121,728 81,302,404
Other, including assets limited as to use 14,414,865 12,575,013
Inventeries, supplies and materlals 13,709,309 12,553,702
Prepaid expenses and deposits 5,766,598 4,551,157
Total current assets * 180,677,604 170,436,734
Investments 54,188,983 52,821,697
Assets Limited as to Use:
Internally designated 157,778,420 136,440,158
Under bond indenture, funds held by trustee 5899175 13,855,860
Interest in net assets of Foundation 737,849 654,132
Doner restricted 17,278,889 17,204,300
181,694,333 168,154,450
Froperty and Equipment, net 248,326,560 255,657,359
Other Assets:
Bond issuance costs, net 775,920 750,334
Goodwili 30,730,877 820,444
Other 1,456,314 1,536,851
32,963,111 3,107,629
707,950,691 § 650,177 869

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,




Liabilities and Net Assets 2011 2010
Current Liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt s 8,245803 3 7,688,885
Accounts payable 17,630,976 18,512,293
Accrued salarles and wages 14,943,124 13,643,144
Accrued paid leave 16,646,147 15,907,419
Due to third-party payors 5,471,502 2,782,867
Unpaid iosses and 'oss adjustment expenses 15,364,020 13,902,001
Other accrued expenses 5,646,273 5,870,263
Total current liabilities 83,847,845 78,406,872
Long-Term Dabt, less current maturities 96,477,661 104,482,761
Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Retirement
Benefits and Other Long-Term Liabilitles 32,837,656 54,837,630
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Notes 8 and 11)
Total llabilitles 213,163,162 237,727,263
Net Assets;
Unrestricted 485,923,057 304,143,518
Noncontrolling interests - unrestricted 10,847,634 448,656
Tempotarily restricted 16,112,867 16,208,874
Permanently restricted 1,903,871 1,651,558
454,787,429 412,450,808
$ 707,950,601 $ 650,177.889




Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Change in unrestricted nst assets:
Unrestricted revenus:
Net patient senvice revenue 15041430 § 524,122,708
Other service revenus, net of cost of revenue
2011 $12,031,987; 2010 $11,150.387 11,583,867 13,027,106
Medical office bullding rentat revenue 1,471,455 1,400,144
Other revenua 14,050,197 16,480,378
Total ravenye 542,146,549 558,040,337
Expenses:
Salarles and wages 223,166 4638 214 758,377
Emgplayas benefits 54,368,072 52,546,749
Confracted professionals and senvices 40,843,532 43,521,383
Supplies 86,171,666 88,407,998
Other expenses 61,469,087 64,798,613
Provision for bad dobts 27,792,024 35,782,768
Inerest §,303,284 7176171
Depreciation and amortization 36,178,677 36,861,277
Total expenses 535,291,650 543,854,337
Qperating Income 8,855,259 14,188,000
Nonoperaling gains and josses:
Interes| and dividend Income and realized gains on sales of Investments 7,780,802 11,208,810
Current year changs In unreallzed gains on trading securities 19,008,724 13,658,929
Other nonoperating income 538,871 306.405
Loss on extingulshment of debt - (1,514 471}
Excess of fafr value over equity acqulred for GenGasiro, LLC 24,765 464 -
Monaperating gaine 52,143,861 23,650,773
Excess of revonue over expensgs 58,999,120 37,845,773
Less excass of revenus (over) under expenses atiributable to
noncantrolling intarests {10,649,020) 12,530
Excess of revenue over expenses attributable
to Gonesis Health System 48,350,100 37,858,303
Nat assels released from restrictions, for capital expenditures 2,611,418 -
Change in unrecognized furded status of retirament plan 20,918,020 (13,457 ,401)
Increaso in unrestrictad net assgts 71,779,639 % 24,400,802

See Notes to Consolldatad Financial Stataments.




Genesis Heaith System
and Related Organizations

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended Juns 30, 2011 and 2010

Nonconirafing
Temporarity Permanently Interests -
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Unrestricted Tatal
Net Assels Net Assets Net Assels Net Asaets Nat Assels
Net assets, June 30, 2000 § 38D742616 $ 14563847 % 1.554555 §  1.200484 § 367.461,502
Excess of revenue over (under) expenses 37,858,303 - - {12,530 37,845,773
Chenge in unracognizad funded status
of retirement plan {13,457,401) - - - {13.457.401)
Contributions, investment incorme (losses) and ather - 2,440,407 {202.987) - 2237410
Met assets released from restrictions, for
aperating activities . {958,547} - - (858,547}
Change in Interest In nét assets of Foundelion - 81,167 - - 61,167
Distributlons to nencontralling interests - - - {738.288) (738,208)
Chango in not asaots 24,400,902 1,543,027 (202,997} {751,828) 24,985,104
Net assets, June 30, 2010 364,143,518 16,206,874 1,651,558 445,658 412,450,006
Excass of revenue over expanses 48,350,100 . - 10,649,020 58,989,120
Changs in unrecognized funded status
of retirement plan 20,918,020 - . - 20,018,020
Contributicns, Investmeant income and other - 3,816,401 252,313 - 4,088,714
Net assets raleasad from restrictions, for
operating activities - (1,482,708) - - (1.482,706)
Net assets released from restrictions, for
capltal expenditures 2,511,418 {2.511.419) - . -
Change in Interest In net assets of Foundation - 83,717 - - 83,717
Consolidate GenGastro, LLC - . . 493,268 493,268
Distributlons to nencontrelling interests - - - {743,310) (743,310)
Change in net asasts 71,779,539 {94,007} 252,313 10,398,978 82,338 823
Not assets, June 30, 2011

$ 4BB, 923,057 § 16,112,867 § 1,803,871 § 10,847,634 § 494,787,429

See Notes to Conaolidated Financial Statements,




Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets § 82,336,823 24,989,104
Adiustments to reconcile change in nef assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreaciation 35,991,783 36,501,853
Armnartization . 186,894 359,424
Excess of fair value over equity in GenGastro, LLC (24,765,464) -
Change in interest in net assets of Foundation {83,717} {61,167)
Loss on disposal of equipmant 338,240 232,684
Eammings in (excess) deficit of distributions of
associated companies (73,162) 367,558
Loss on extinguishment of debt - 1,514,471
Restricted contributions (1,067,863) {1,233,772)
Realized and unreallzed (gains) on investmenis (24,769,135) (20,612,772}
Net changes in assets and llabilitles:
(Increase) decrease in patient and other recaivables 1,020,188 {5,442,080)
{Increase)} in inventories, supplies and materials {1,455,607) (1,151,448)
(Increase) in prepaid expenses and deposlis (1,215,441} (238,493)
{Increase)} in funded status of retirement plan {23,018,130) (27,723)
Increasa (decrease) in accounts payable {1,079,268) 5,417,049
Increase in accrued expenses, due to third-party payors,
retirement benefits and other 5,883,528 4373034
Net cash provided by operating activities 49,630,868 44,987,642
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment {28,684,459) {31.850,931)
Praceeds from sale of equipment 92,388 1,055,726
Purchase of investments {44,568,055) (56,008,829}
Purchase of additional investment from noncontrolling interests (5,855,614} -
Proceeds from sale of investments 54,632,660 46,958,567
Consolidate noncontrolling interests in GenGastro, LLC {493,268) -
{increase) in other assets {148,784) {256,004)
’ Net cash (used in) investing activities {25,025,231) (40,101,531)
Cash Flows from Financing Activitles:
Principal payments on long-term debt, inciuding capital
lease obligations (7,431,341) (107,254,012)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 94,794,486
Restricted contributions 1,067,663 1,233,772
Payments of hoand issuance costs . (641,318)
Net cash {used in} financing activities $ (6,363,678) § (11,807.072)

{Continued)




Genasis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equlvalents:
Beginning
Ending

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infermation,
cash payments for interest

Supplernental Disclosures of Noncash Investing Activities,
Acquisition of GenGastro, LLC:
Patient receivables acquired
Property and equipment acquired
Accounis payable acquired
Consolidate GenGastro, LLC
Goodwill
Noncontrolling interests
Excess of fair value over equity acquired
Cash payment

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

$ 18,141,980 3§ (7,020,081)

58,099,247 65,120,208

$ 76,241,207 $ 58,009,247

$ 5305504 § 7,180,392

$ 679,364
408,154
(97,951)

{493,268)
(29,910,433)
9,796,670
24,765,464

$ 5,148,000




Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles
Nature of business:

Genesis Health System -~ lowa (GHS lowa), an lowa nenprofit corporation, and Genesis Health System
- lllinois (GHS Iiflinois), an Hitnois not-for-profit corporation, have identical governing boards,
management and bylaws and can act jointly. GHS lowa and GHS lliinois collectively represent the
Obligated Group on certain of the System's long-tarm debt,

GHS lowa is also the sole member of Genesis Health Servicas Foundation and Genesis Health System
Workers’ Compensation Plan and Trust, the sole stockholder of GenVentures, Inc., a member of
Misericordia Assurance Company, Ltd. and a partner in GenGastro, LLC and Davenport SRS Leasing,
LLC. GHS lllinois is the sole member of lllini Hospital Foundation and a partner in The Larson Center
Partnership.,

GHS lowa and GHS lllinois {collectively GHS) operate the following business units:

Ganesls Health System provides administrative, management, information technology and other
support services to its affiliates.

Genesis Clinical Services: GHS owns and operates physician medical practices, convenient care
practices, operates an occupational medicine clinic and provides behavicral health services to the
residents of eastern lowa and western Illinois.

Genesis Medical Center — Davenport (GMC — Davenport] is licensed as a 502-bed acute care
hospital which provides services from two hospital facilities located in Davenport, lowa,

Genesis Family Medical Canter (GFMC] is a family practice residency trainlng program that
operates clinics in Davenport and Blue Grass, lowa to provide a clinical setting for the residents to
treat patients.

Genesls Medical Center - DeWitt (GMC — DeWitt} is certified as a critical access hospital, which
has 13-acute care and swing beds, and has a 77-bed long-term care facility, which provides services
from its facility in CeWitt, lowa.

Genesls lifinois Properties {GIP) owns land located in Moline, lllinols,

Genesls Visiting Nurse Association and Hospice (VNA) provides home heaith care, community
nursing services and hospice services to patients in eastern lowa and western lllinais.

Genesls Medical Centar — lllini (GMC - ilini} is licensed as a 149-bed acute care hospital which
provides services from its facility in Sllvis, lllingis,




Genesis Health System
and Reiated Organizations

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

illini Hospital Nursing Home {INH) operates |llini Restorative Care Center and Crosstown
Square. lllini Restorative Care Center operates a 75-bed licensed nursing facility which provides
skilled and intermediate health care and refated services to patients. Twenty-two of lllini
Restorative Care Center's beds are designated as hospital-based Medicare certified beds. lllinl
Restorative Care's Sheltered Care unit is a 45-bed facility which provides rehabflitative and
personal care in a family-oriented setting. Crosstown Square Is an independent living facility
containing 76 rentable apartments and two guest rooms that offers services designed to meet the
neaeds of senior adults.

GHS lowa and GHS Illinois have a controlling ownership interest ar membership in the following
organizations;

Genesis Heaith Services Foundation {Genesis Foundation) is an orgarization whose
mission is te develop, manage and grant charitable support to meet the health-related needs of
the communities served by Genesis Health System

illini Hospltal Foundation (Hilini Foundation} supports GMC — Jiiini by providing financlal and
fundraising assistance. The mission of the lllini Foundation is to assist GMC - [llini In providing

quality, compassionate care for all those In need by raising, managing and granting charitable
funds.

The Genesis Foundation and Hlini Foundation are collectively referred to as the Foundations.

The Larson Center Partnership {LCP) is a for-profit real estate partnership which owns a
medical office building adjacent to GMC - (llinl and leases space for clinics, laboratory,
pharmacy and offices to GMC ~ [ltini and other third-party organizations. GHS lllinols is a
general partner and owns approximately 75.6% of LCP.

GenVentures, Inc. (GenVentures} is a wholly-owned for-profit corporation which operates the
following divisions, primarily in the Quad Cities:

Genesls at Home, Continuing Care sells and leases home medical equipment; provides
Intravenous therapy services, including sales of related solutions and supplies to patlents;

and provides retail pharmaceutical and over the counter products to patients and employees
of the System,

GenProperties owns, jeases and/or manages office space in thirteen medical office
buildings located in Davenport, Eldridge, LeClaire, Muscatine and Bettendorf, lowa.

Crescent Laundry provides commercial laundry services to health care facllities in eastern
jowa and in north-centrai lllinois,

Genesis Heaith Systemn Workers' Compensation Plan and Trust (Workers' Compensation
Trust) provides a fund which can be used to pay warkers' compensation claims and costs for
the benefit of Genesis Health System.

Misg n'gg rdia Assurence Company, Ltd. (Misericordia) is a wholiy-owned Cayman based
captive insurance company which underwrites the general and professional liability risks of
Genaesis Health System and affitiates,




Genesls Health System
and Related Organizations

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

GenGastro, LLC {d/b/a the Center for Digestive Health) is a limited liabitily company, which
was formed in 2003, a single-specialty gastroenterology ambulatory surgery center located in
Bettandorf, lowa. Genesis Health System is a general partner and owned 50% of GenGastro as
of June 30, 2010. In December 2010, Genesis Health System acquired an additional 16.67%
intarest in GenGastro and maintains a 66.67% ownership interest as of June 30, 2011. Upon
obtalning a controlling Interest, the System consolidated the accounts of GenGastro, LLC inlts
consolidated financial statements in January 2011,

Davenport SRS Leasing, LLC (SRS} is a limited liability company, which was formed in 2008,
which leases medlical equipment, Genesis Health System is a general partner and owned 55%
of SRS as of June 30, 2009. On September 3D, 2009, Genesis Health System actjuired an
additional 38.75% interest in SRS to obtain a 93.75% ownership interest as of June 30, 2011
and 2010.

GHS and its related organizations are collectively referred to as the System.

Significant accounting policies:

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Genesis Health System and related organizations. All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been ellminated upon consolidation,

Accounting estimates: The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting perlod. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Due to
uncertaintles Inherent In the estimation and assumption process, it is at (east reascnably possible that

changes in the estimates and assumptions in the near term would be materlal to the financial
statements,

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted cash and temporary cash
investmants not limited as to use. The cash equivalents have a maturity of three months or lass at date
of issuance. Certain temparary cash investments internally designated as long-term investments are
excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

Patient receivables: The collection of recelvables from third-party payors and patients is the System'’s
primary source of cash for operations and is critical to its operating performance. The primary collection
risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts for which the primary insurance payor
has paid, but patient responsibility amounts for deductibles and copayments remain outstanding.
Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsibie for paying the amount, are carried at a net
amount determined by tha original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for
contractual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

10




Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Notes to Consolidated Flnancial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carried at the original charge for the sarvice
provided less amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for doubtful
receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basls. Receivables due from
medical office building tenants and from commercial laundry customers are carried at the original
invoica amount less an estimate made for doubtful accounts, Management determines the allowance
for doubtful accounts by identifying troubled accounts, by historical experlence applied to an aging of
accounts, and by considering the patient’s financial history, credit history and current economic
conditions. The System does not charge interest on receivables. Receivables are writtan off as bad
debts when deemed uncollactible. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a
reduction of bad debt expense when received.

Receivables or payables related o estimated settlements on varicus payor contracts, primarily
Medicare, are reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix,
business office operations, economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health
care coverage could affect the Systern's collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of
operatians,

Inventories, supplies and materigls: Inventories, supplias and materials are valued at the lower of cost
(first-in, first-out methad} or market.

Assets imited as to use: Assets limited as to use include assets internally designated by the System's
Board of Directors for future capital improvements and other purposas, over which the Board retains
control and may at their discretion subsequently use for other purposes, assets held by trustees under
bond indenture agreements, interest in the net assets of the DeWitt Community Hospital Foundation
and donor restricted assets.

Donor restricted assets limited as to use as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 include approximately $100,000
and $134,000, respectively, of pledges receivable for unconditional pramlses which are restricted by
the donors to be used for capital projects. All of the pledges receivable are expected to be collected
within the next year and are included in other raceivables as a current asset on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. The pledges are recorded net of an estimated aliowance for uncollectible
receivables of approximately $8,000 and $13,000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectivaly,

Investments: Short-term investments consist of certificates of deposit which are statad at cost which
approximates fair value, Investments In equity securities, including assets limited as to use, with readily
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are measured at fair value on the
consolidated balance sheets based on quoted market prices. investments also inciude altemative
investments which are carried at fair value, which is estimated at the most recent valuations provided
by external investment managers. Management has reviewed and evaluated the values provided by
the managers and agrees with the valuation methods and assumptions used to determine their values,

Investment income includes dividends, interest and other investment income and realized gains and

losses on investments. Changes [n unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as trading
securities are included in excess of revenue over expenses.
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Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 1. Natura of Business and Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

Investment income eamed on Misericordia's investments, which are restricted for the payment of
general and professional liabiilties, is included in other gperating revenue. Investment income included
as other operating revenue was $1,424,505 and $2,664,678 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

The System classifies substantially all of its investments in debt and equity securities as trading. This
classification as trading requires the System to racognize unrealized gains and losses on substantially
all of its unrestricted and internally designated investments in debt and equity securities as a
component of nonoperating income and expense in the consofidated statemants of operations and
changes in net assets,

Investments in associated companies are accounted for by the equity method of accounting under
which the Systam's share of the net income {loss) of the assoclated companies that provide patient
related services are recognized as operating income (loss} and the share of net incoms {loss) of the
associated companies that do not provide patient related services are recognized as nonoperating
income {loss) in the consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets and added to
(deducted from) the investment account. Dividends and distributions recelved from the associated
companies are lreated as a raduction of the investment account. The System has investments in
companies that provide; lithofripsy, ultrasound services, endoscopy procedures, speciallzed and
orthopedic care, ambulatory surgery procedures, occupational and physical therapy rebabilitation
services, a medical office building parinership, an equipment leasing company, mobile ¢linical and
medical services, health insurance plans and in the Genesis Heart Institute. Subsequent to year-end,
the Systern entered Into a transaction to increase its ownership interest in the company that provides
ambulatory surgery procedures,

As of June 30, 2008, the System held a 5% interest in Wellmark Hsalth Plan of lowa, which was
recorded at its cost. The System sold its 5% interest to Wellmark Health Plan of lowa during the year
ended June 30, 2010 and recognized a gain of approximately $5,400,000 which is inciuded in
Investment income on the accompanying statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2010.

Property and eguipment: Property and equipment is carmied at cost or, if donated, at fair market value
at date of donatien. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line methed over the assets’ astimated
useful lives. Interest cost incurred an bomowed funds during the perlod of constructlon of capital assets
is capitalized as a componant of the cost of acquiring those assets. Amortization expense on assets
acquired under capital leases is included with depreciation expense on owned assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as unrestricted support and
are included in the income or loss from operatlons unlass expliclt donar stipulations specify how the
donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the
assets are used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are
reported as restricted suppart. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets
must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-
lived assets are placed in service.

Bend Issuance costs: Bond issuance costs are belng amortized over the term the bonds are
outstanding.

Goodwill: Goodwiil is being tested for impairment annually. Management performed assessments for
impairment as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 and determined na goodwill impairment exIsts.
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and Related Organizations

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles (Continued)

Unpaid losses and loss adiustment expenses: Misericordia Assurance Company Ltd. and the Workers'
Compensation Trust have liabilitles for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses which are
determined using case basis evaluations and statistlcal analyses and represant estimates of the
ultimate net cost of all reporied and unreported Iosses which are unpaid at year-end. Management
concurs with the independent actuary on the determination of the estimated wtimate net costs for
losses and loss adjustment expenses.

All estimates of unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are reviewed at least annually, and any
adjustments determined to be necessary are refiacted in current operations, Since these liabilities are
based on estimates, the ultimate settlement of losses and related expense may vary from the amounts
included in the consolidated financial statements. Misericordia records its estimated lability for unpaid
losses and joss adjustment expenses at an undiscounted actuarially determined amount. The Workers'
Compensation Trust records its estimated lability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses at a
discounted actuarially determined amount, discounted using a 3% yield for the years ended June 30,
2011 and 2010,

Although it is not possible to measure the degree of variability inherant in such estimates, management
believes that the liabilities for unpaid losses and loss adjusimant expenses are adequate. No
representation is made, howevaer, that the ultimate liabilities may not be in excess of the amounts
provided. Aiso, the Trust’s participants are obfigated by the terms of the Trust agresment to contribute
retrospective payments to the Trust, if deemed necessary, in order to support claims and costs in
excess of the amounts provided.,

Misericordia and the Workers' Compensation Trust record their estimated liabilities gross of any
amounts recoverable under their own reinsurance, which amounts, if any, are recorded separately In
the balance sheet. In the event that the reinsurers are unable to meet thelr obligations under the
reinsurance agreements, they would be liable to pay all losses under the reinsurance assumed but
would only receive reimbursemant to the extent that the reinsurers can meet their obligations.

Premiums written and ceded: Premiums written and ceded are recognized in Income pro-rata over the
term of the policies and the unearned and unexpensed portions at the consolidated balance sheet
dates are transferred to unearmed premiums or deferred reinsurance premlums ceded, respectivaly.

Reinsurance premlums ceded are similarly recognized on a pro-rata basis over the terms of the policy
issued and the unearned portlon, If any, deferred and transferred to deferred reinsurance premiums
ceded in the consolidated balance sheet.

The poficles insured by Misericordla are subject to a retrospective rating plan, undsr which
retrospactive premlums are recomputed annually based on Incurred loss. Retrospective premium
adjustments are Inciuded in income in the perlod in which they are determined,

Conslstent with this policy, all available income of Misericordia is transferred to the provision for

outstanding losses and retrospective premium adjustments, Accordingly, Misericordia's statements of
income reflect a break-even position in income.
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Notes to Consolldated Financlal Statements

Note 1, Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Temporarlly and permanentty restricted net assets: The System is required to report information
regarding its financlal position and operations according to three ¢lasses of net assets; unrestricted net
assets, temporarily restricted net assets and permanently restricted net assets. The three classes are
based on the presence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Temporarily restricted net assets
include net assets restricted by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net
assets have been restricted by donors te be maintained in perpetuity. Donor restricted contributions
whose restrictions are met within the same year as recefved are reported as unrestricted contributions
in the accempanylng consclidated financial statements.

Noncontrolfing Interests: The Hospital has a 66.87% interest in GenGastro, LLC, a 75.60% interest in
The Larson Center Partnership and a 83.75% interest in Davenport SRS Leasing, LLC, while other
members own a nonconiralling interast of tha companies, A pro rata share of the Income or losses and
net assets, in the form of members' equity, applicable to this interest has been recognized in the
System's consolidated financial statements.

Falr vatue of financial instruments: Financial instruments are described as cash or contractual
obligations or rights to pay or to receive cash. The fair value for certain financial instruments
approximates the carrying value because of the shorl-term maturity of these instruments which include
cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
due to third-party payors and other current liabilities. The System's investments and assets limited as
to use are carried at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets. Based on borrowing rates currently
available to the System with similar terms and maturities, the fair value of the Jong-term debt excluding
capital leases and unamortized bond premium approximates $99,136,000 and $97,351,000 as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, -

Fair value measurements; The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASRE) Accounting Standards Codification defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring falr value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements, which
applies to all assets and liatiilties that are measured and reported on a fair value basis. Sea Note 6 for
additiona! information,

Net patient service revenue: Net patient service ravenue is reporied at the estimated net realizable
amounts from patients, third-party payors and others for services rendered, including estimated
retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive
adlustments with third-party payors are consldered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis

in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined,

Other service revenue, net of cost of revenue: The consolidated statements of aperations include other
service revenue, net of cost of revenue which primarily conslsts of the leasing of medical equipment,

home medical equipment and office bulldings through GenVentures, Inc, and Davenport SRS Leasing,
LLC.

Operating income: The consolidated statements of operations include operating income. Changes in
unregtricted net assets, which are excluded from operating Income Include investment Income,
contribution income and other income which management views as outside of norma!l activity.
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Excess of revenue over expenses: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets include excess of revenue over expenses. Changes in unrestricted net assets which are
excluded from excess of revanue over expenses, consistant with industry practice, include the change
in unrealized gains and losses on investments classified as other-than-trading, permanent transfers of
assets for other than goods and services, contributions of long-lived assets {including assets acquired
using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such
assets), and change in unrecognized funded status of the retirament plan,

New accounting guidance: The System adopted certain provisions of FASB Accounting Standards
Update {ASU) 2010-08, Falr Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820); /mproving Disclosures
about Fair Value Measurements, eflactive for the System for the year ended June 30, 2011. The
remaining provisions are effective for the year ending June 30, 2012. The adoption improves the
disclosures and increases tha trangparency in financial reporting of fair vatues in the footnotes of the
System's financial statements.

The System adopted accounting standards on Not-for-Profft Entitigs: Mergers and Acquisitions
(formerly SFAS No, 164). This standard detarmines whether a combination is a merger or an
acquisition; applies the carryover methed In accounting for a merger; applies the acquisition method in
accounting for an acquisition, including determining which of the combining entities is the acquirer; and
determines what information to disclose to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the nature
and financial effects of a merger or an acquisition. This standard also amends an accounting standard
on Goodwill and Other Intangible Assats (formerly SFAS No. 142), to make it fully applicable to not-for-
profit entities. This amendment requires that goodwill of the System, if any, cease to be amortized, but
_must be tested for impairment at the “reporting unit” level, a new concept for not-for-profit entities. The
standard also established accounting and reporting standards for a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidlary and for the deconsoiidation of a subsidlary. This guidance clarifies that a noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity and may be reported as net
assets in the consolidated financial statements, rather than az a fiability in the mezzanine section
betwasn liabilities and net assets. The adoption of this guidance resulted in a retroactive restatemant
which increased net assets and decreased liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2010 and 2009 by $448,656 and $1,200,484, respectively, and modified the presentation of the
consclidated statements of operations to Include amounts attributable to Genesis Health System and
the noncontrolling interests,

Charity care: The System provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under charity care
policies without charge or at amounts less than its established rates, Because the System does not
pursue collaction of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenus.
Also see Note 3.

Reclassifications: Certain tems on the consolidated financial statements as of and fer the year ended
June 30, 2010 have been reclassified to be consistent with classifications adopted during the year. The
reclassifications had no Impact on total assets or total nat assets with the exception of the adoption of
the accounting standards on Not-for-Profit Enifties: Mergers and Acquisitions as discussed above.

Subsequent events: The System has evaluated subsequent events through Qctober 25, 2011, the
date on which the consolidated financlal statements were issued.
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Note 2, Net Patient Service Revenue

Health care providers within the System have agreements with third-party payors that provide for
payments at amounts different from its established rates. These third-party payors include: the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, Wellmark/Blue Cross, other health maintenance organizations, and various
commercial insurance and preferred provider organizations.

Third-party payor rates differ by payor and include: established charges, contracted rates less than
establishad charges, retroactively determined gost-based rates and prospectively determined rates per
discharge, per procedure, or per diem.

A summary of net patient service revenue for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows.

2011 2010
Gross patient service revenue $ 1177273400 $ 1,185,229.388
Less discounts, aflowances and esfimated contractual
adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs 662,202,982 661,108,679

§ 515070418 § 524,122,709

Estimated contractual adjustments for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 includes the effect of a
change in the estimate of the amount due to third-party payors. The effect of this change in estimate is a
decrease in estimated contractual adjustments of approximately $4,071,000 and $3,526,000 for the years
anded June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and is refated to the recognition of disproportionate share
reimbursement and refroactive adjustments based on final settlements of cost reports.

In December 2008, the Federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved the State
of llinois Medicaid Hospita! Assessment Program. Under the Program, which is retroactive to July 1,
2008, a hospital receives additional Medicaid reimbursement from the State and pays a related
assessment. Total reimbursement revenue recognized by the System related to this Program for each af
the years endsd June 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately $5,814,000 which is recorded as a
reduction of estimated contractual adjustments. Total assessments incurred by the System related to this
Program for each of the years ended June 39, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately $1,846,000
which is included in other operating expenses. The Program Is effective through June 2014,

In 2011, CMS approved the State of lowa's Hospital Provider Tax Pragram. Under the Program, which is
retroactive to July 1, 2010, a hospltal is required to pay a quarterly provider tax assessment. The tax
assessments collected by the State are used to fund a health care access improvement fund and are
used to obtain federal matching funds, all of which must be distributed to lowa hospitals to help bring
Medicaid reimbursement closer to the cost of providing care. The allocation of these funds to specific
health care providers is based primarily on the amount of care provided to Medicaid reciplents. The Plan
increases inpatient DRG rsimbursement rates and also implements several supplemental inpatient and
cutpatient methodologies, The Program is effective through June 2013.

The System's additional reimbursement for the year ended June 30, 2011 has been recorded in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. Total reimbursement revenua recognized by the
System related to this Program amounted to approximately $3,465,000 for the year ended June 30, 2011,
which is recarded as a reduction of contractual adjustments, Total assessments incurred by the System
related to this Program amounted to approximately $2,491,000 for the vear ended June 30, 2011, which
is included in other operating expenses.
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Note 3. Charity Care and Community Service

The System maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides. These records
include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies fumished under its charity care policy
and the estimated cost of those services and supplies. Tha amount of charges foregone, based on
astablished rates during the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $31,816,000 and
$21,188,000, respectively. These charges foregone represent approximately 79% and 65% of the
System's operating income before charity care adjustments for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Although not accounted for as charity care, the System considers the confractual adjustment expense
related to the Medicaid services as additional ¢charily care. Contractual adjustments related to Medicald
services performed were approximately $89,317,000 and $93,605,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

In addition to its charity policy, the System provided community benefits, including, but not limited to, the
following:

*  QOperation of full-time emergency rooms previding emergency medical services to all patients
accessing the System, regardless of race, creed, sex, national origin, handicap, age ar ability to
pay.

*  Operation of a community based hospice program along with the only residential hesplce house in
the Quad Cities.

*  Maintenance of provider agreements with the Medicare and Medicald programs,

=  Health scresnings, promotions, education and prevention programs offered free or at low cost to
its communities.

* A medical education program which provides for the education of Family Practice residents at
GFMC, as well as support to nursing programs.

*  Volunteer services provided by the System's staff to the communities, including major community
events and fund raising activities.

*  Not-for-profit community funding, including those community groups’ activities that are consistent
with Genesis' mission.

*  Subsidized services to other charitable organizations providing health related services.

Genesis Health System and the Foundations, as part of their missions, grant charitable support to meet
the health related needs of the communitles served by the System.

Nota 4, Recelvables
Patient receivables as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010
Patient receivables before allowances $ 150,843,418 § 157,464,354
Less;
Estimated third-party contractual allowances 57,347,065 58,283,448
Allewance for doubtful accounts and charity care 14,374,623 16,878,504

$ 79121728 $ 81,302,404
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Note 5. Composition of Long-Term Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Long-term investments and assets limited as to use that are internally designated and donor restricted
consist of the following as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010

Cash, primarily monay market funds $ 1879842 §$ 614,035
Certificates of deposit 8,500,254 12,343,444
Commeon stocks 67,975,262 20,818,396
Fixed income mutual funds 57,348,154 56,174,212
Equity mutual funds 40,474,950 65,151,028
Equity collective investment funds 43,199,585 41,760,355
Investment in assoclated companies 9,527.473 9,059,217
Pledges receivable 100,238 133,975
Other 540,772 545,468

Total $ 229.546,530 $ 206,600,130

ﬁ—_——l_-l_

Long-term investments and assets limited as to use that are internaliy designated and donaor restricted
ara included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the following captions as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Cther receivables, current portion $ 100,238 % 133,975
Investments 54,388,983 52,821,657
Agsets limited as to use:
Internally deslgnated 157,778,420 136,440,158
Donor restricted 17,278,889 17,204,300

§ 220,546,530 _$ 206,600,130

Assets limited as to use under bond indenture, funds held by trustee, consist of money market funds of
$5,889,175 and $13,855,880 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These assets, including related

investment income, are restricted to be maintained as dabt service reserve funds and for capital projects
and, therefore, are unavailable for the System's ganeral use.

The investments of the System are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit. Due
to the level of risk associated with such investments and the level of uncerfainty related to changes in the
value of such investments, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in risks In the near term would
materially affect investment balances and the amounts reported in the financial statements.
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Note 5. Composition of Long-Term Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

The retumn on investments, including assets limited as to use, is reported in the consolidated statements
of operations and changes in net assets as follows:

2011 2010
Unrestricted:
interest and dividend income $ 3847388 § 6045598
Equity In net Income of associated companies 3,070,992 4,576,865
Net realized gains on investments 3,022,169 289,168
Qther operating revenue 1,424,505 2,664,678
Realized gain on sale of Welimark Health
Plan of lowa investment - 5,445,600
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments 18,008,724 13,658,929
30,373,778 32,690,838
Tempoerarily restricted:
Interest and dividend income 219,812 197,823
Net realized gains {(josses) on investmenis 836,944 {639,820}
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments 1,755,064 1,782,001
2,812,520 1,340,004
Permanently restricted:
Interest and dividend Income 3,412 3,781
Net realized gains (losses) on investments 11,7886 {12,034)
Change in net unrealized gains and losses on investments 133,538 78,838
148,746 70,585

$ 33335044 3 34101517

Note 6. Investments and Falr Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly fransaction between market participants and requires the use of valuation techniques that are
consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach. Inputs to valuation
techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.
Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or Fabllity developed based on market data obtalned from Independent sources, of
unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information
available in the cireumstances. In that regard, this guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for
valuation inputs that gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.
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Note 6. Investments and Falr Value Measurements {Continued)
The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identica! assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity
has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2;  Significant other observable inputs other than leve) 1 prices such as quoted prices for
simiar assets or llabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that
are ohservable or ¢an be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3.  Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity's cwn assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, as well
as the general ¢lassification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set forth below:

Investments in common stocks and mutual funds traded on a nationa! securities exchange are valued
at the last reported sales price on the day of valuation. These financlal instruments are ciassified as
level 1 in the fair value hierarchy.

The System invests in alternative investments consisting of equity mutual funds and collective
investment funds for which fair value is determined using the net asset value per share of each fund,
The NAV for level 2 mutual funds and collective investment funds is primarily determined based on the
underlying assets and liabilities held in the fund. The estimated fair values of certain investments of the
underlying investment funds, which may include securities for which prices are not readily available,
are determined by the managers of the respactive other investment fund and may not reflect amounts
that could be realized upen immediate sale, nor amounts that ultimately may be realized, Accordingly,
the estimated fair vaiues may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a
ready market existed for these investments. The fair value of the System's investmants in funds
generally represents the amount the System would expect to recelve if it were to liquidate its
investments in funds excluding any redemption charges that may apply.

There have been no changes In valuation techniques used for any assets measured at fair value during
the year ended June 30, 2011.
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Note 6, Investments and Falr Value Measurements (Continued)

Assets recorded at fair value on a recurring basis:

The following table summarizes assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2011
and 2010, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized to
measure fair value:

invastments at Falr Value as of June 30, 2011

Falr Valus Leve! 1 Level 2 Level 3
Commen Stocks:
Healthcare £ 5800871 § 9000971 & - $ -
Financial 8,801,278 8,801,278 . -
Consumer Discrationary 11,073,908 11,073,908 . -
Energy £.716,604 6.716.854 - -
Information Technology 14,774,970 14,774,970 - -
Indusinals 5,663,432 5.663,132 - -
ADR’s (American Depository Receaipts) 4,232,897 4,332 897 - -
Materials 2,543,524 2,543,524 - -
Consumer Staples 2,512,983 2,512,083 - -
Utitities 878,508 878,506 . -
Tetecommunication Services 776,089 776,089 . -
Equity Mutual Funds:
Themburg Intemationat Value Fund 17,000,179 17,000,173 - .
PIMCO Cayman U.S. Total Retum Fund 11,818,129 . 11,818,129 -
Other 11,656,642 11,656,642 - .
Equity Collectiva Investment Funds:
JP Morgan Care Bond Trust 32,045,337 - 32,945,337 -
JP Morgan U.S. Aggregate Bond Fund 10,254,248 - 10,254,248 -
Fixed Income Mutual Funds:
PIMCO Tofal Return Fund 45378,123 45,378,123 - -
Olher 11,874,031 11,870,031 -

§ 208,087,651 § 153,980,237 § 55017714 % d
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Note 6. Investments and Falr Value Measurernents {Continued)

Investments at Fair Value #s of June 30, 2010

Fair Valye Level 1 Level 2 Love! 3

Common Stocks:

Healthcare $ 4228250 5§ 4228250 § . s -

Financial 1,807,175 1.807.175 - -

Consumer Digcretionary 4,061,483 4,061,483 - -

Energy 1,548,358 1,546,359 - -

Information Technalogy 7.588.280 7.588,280 - -

Industrals 795,487 705,487 - -

ADR's {(Amaricen Depository Recefpis} 791,362 791,382 - -
Equity Mutuat Funds:

Lord Abbatt Small Cap Blend Fund 11,151,680 11,15%,680 - ~

CQuantitative Equity Large Cap Value AP Trust 18,440,686 - 18,440,666 -

Thomburg intamatlenal Vatue Fund 13,047,068 13,047,096 - -

PIMCO Cayman 1.8, Tota! Retum Fund 11,917,933 - 11,917,933 .

Other 10,593,653 10,503,653 - .
Equity Collectlve Investment Funds:

JP Morgan Cora Bond Trust 31,082,853 - 31,082,853 -

JP Momgan U.S. Aggregate Bond Fund 10,677,502 - 10.877.502 -
Fixed Income Mutua! Funds:

PIMCO Tota) Refum Fund 44 259177 44,259,177 . .

Other 11,815,035 11,915,035 - -

$ 183903991 § 191785037 § 72118854 § -

There were no transfers of assets or liabilities between levels 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during
the year ended June 30, 2011,
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Note 6. Investments and Falr Value Measurements (Continued)

The following table sets forth additional disclosure of the System's investments whose fair value is
estimated using net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Fair Value Unfunded Redemption Redemption
2011 2010 Commitment  Fraguancy Notlce Period
Investments:
Equity Mutual Funds:
Quantliative Equity Largs Cap
Valug AP Trust (A} $ - % 18440666 $ - Monthly Nane
PIMCC Cayman U.S, Total
Return Fund (B) 11,818,128 11,947,933 - Dally Daity
Equity Collective Investmeant Funds:
JP Morgan Core Bond Trust (C) 32,645,337 31,082,853 - Dally Dally
JP Morgan U5, Aggragate
Bong Fung (D) 10,254,248 10,677,502 - Dally Trade date, minus 3 days

$ 55017714 § 72118954  §

(A) The fund seeks to provide long-term growth of capital through a diversified portfolio comprised
primarily of common stocks of high quality, medium to large sized U.S. based companies with
leading competitive positions. This fungd was redeemad during the year ended June 30, 2011,

(B} PIMCO Cayman U.S. Total Retumn Fund is an open-end invesiment fund incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The Fund's chjective is maximum tota! return, consistent with preservation of
capital and prudent investment management, The System has usad the net asset value per share
{NAV) as the practical expedient to measure fair value.

(C) The fund seeks to maximize total return by investing primarlly in a diversified portfolio of
intermediate and long-term debt securities. The System has used the NAV as the practical
expedient to measure fair valua,

{0} JP Morgan U.S. Aggregate Bond Fund is an open-end investment fund incorporated in
Luxembourg. The Fund's objectiva is to achigve retumn in excess of U.S. bond markets by
investing primarily in U.S. fixed and floating rate debt securitles. The System has used the NAV as
the practical expedient to measure falr value,
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Note 7. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 ¢consists of the following:

2011 2010
Land and land improvements (A) $ 29,863,006 $ 29,553.864
Buildings (B) 325,215,888 318,376,247
Leasehold improvements 20,132,450 19,257,949
Equipment {C) 301,872,301 282,218,908
Construction in process 11,662,995 10,760,878
688,846,640 660,167,844
Less accumulated depraciation, including accumulated
depreciation 2011 $20,681,989; 2010 $19,424,206 on
capifal lease assets 440,520,080 404,510,485

$_248 326,560

$ 255,657 358

(A)  land and land improvements include assets under capital lease as of Juns 30, 2011 and

2010 of $1,153,678.

(B)  Buildings include assets under capital lease as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 of $22,272,145.

(&)  Equipment includes assets under capital lease as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 of $8,436,085.
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt and Pledged Assets
Long-term debt and pledged assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following:

2011 2010
GHS lowa:

Revenue bonds, Series 2010 (A) $ 85390,000 $ 90,995000
Unamortized bond premium, Series 2010 (A) 3.782,645 3,798,486
Notes payable and annuity payable - 2,506
GHS lowa subtotal 89,172,645 94,796,092

GHS lllinois:
Capital lease obligations (B} 8,450,000 8,740,000
Capital lease obligation (C) 27.977 81,878
GHS liiinols subtotal 8,477,877 8.821,878
QObligated Group subtotal 897,650,622 103,618,871
GenVentures, note payable, bank (D) 532,626 815,012
LCP, line of credit (E) 675,473 1,105,470
SRS, capital lease obligation (F) 5,817,783 6,795,455
lllini Foundatlon, annuities payable 46,860 36,838
104,723,464 112,171,646
Less current maturities 8,245,803 7,688,885

$ 06477661 § 104,482 761

(A)  During fiscal year 2010, GHS lowa Issued lowa Finance Authority Healthcare Revenue
Bonds, Series 2010. The Series 2010 bonds, which had an original principal balance of
$90,995,000 and were issued at a premium of $3,799,486, have payments due July 1,
annually, and mature in varying amounts through July 1, 2026 and bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The Serias 2010 bonds are secured by a pledge of the Obligated
Group's unrestricted recaivables. The proceeds of the bonds were used to extinguish the
1997 and 2000 Series bonds. The loss on extinguishment of the 1997 and 2000 Series bonds
was $1,514,471 for the year ended June 30, 2010.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the Master Trust Indenture,
{he most significant of which is for the Obligated Group fo maintain a minimum debt service
coverage ratio of 1.10 to 1.
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Note 8.

{B)

©

©

=2

(F)

Long-Term Debt and Pledged Assets (Contlnued)

GMC - Itini leases its land, land improvements and buildings from llini Hospital District, a
related party, under a capital lease agreement which requires payment in an amount
sufficient to pay all principal and interest on outstanding general abligation bonds (alternative
revenue source),

The Sertes 2010 general obligation bonds (alternative revenue source) have an outstanding
principa! balance of $8,477,977, These bonds were issued to advance refund $8,740,000 of
the outstanding 2001 genera! obligation bonds (altemnative revenue source}. The Series 2010
bonds bear interest at rates varying from 1.27% to 4.53%, which is payable on January 1 and
July 1. The bonds mature in varying amounts from $680,000 to $905,000 through January
2022,

The depreciated cost of land, land improvements and buildings under this capital lease is
approximately $7,056,000 as of June 30, 2011.

During fiscal year 2007, GMC - llinl entered into a capital lease agreement, due in monthly
installments of approximately $5,000, including interest at 5% with final payment due in
December 2011.

GenVentures' bank note is due in monthly payments of $10,200, including interest at a
variable rate, 6.95% as of June 30, 2011, through August 2016, secured by building and land.
Under this agreement, GenVentures is required to maintain certain restrictive covenants
including a minimum tangible net worth 2and a minimum debt service coverage ratio.

LCP has a $1,500,000 line of credit with a bank which matures March 29, 2014. The current
balance of the line of credit is due in meonthly installments of $44,304, Including interest at
3.96%, through December 15, 2012. The note is collateralized by afl property and equipment
of LCP.

During fiscal year 2009, SRS entered into a capital lease agreement, due in monthly
installments of $122,135, including Interest at 7.68% with final payment due in March 2016.
The lease is secured by equipment. The depreciated cost of the equipment under this capital
lease is approximatety $4,824,000 as of June 30, 2011.

Obligated Group:

Genesis Health System — lowa and Genesis Health System - lllinois, collectively, represent the
Cbligated Group on the revenue bond obligations.
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Note 8. Long-Term Debt and Pledged Assets {Continued)

The foliowing is a schedule of future minimum lease payments due under caplial leases together with the
- present value of future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2011;

Year ending June 30;

2012 $ 2,436,000

2013 2,412,000

2014 2,416,000

2015 2,416,000

2016 2,045,000

Thereafter 5,693,000

17,418,000

Less the amount representing interest 3,122,000
Present value of future minimum

leasa payments $ 14,296 000

The aggregate principal maturities of the long-term debt, excluding unamortized bond premium, as of
June 30, 2011 over the next five years and thereafter are approximately as follows:

Year ending June 3C;

2012 $ 8,246,000
2013 8,170,000
2014 8,421,000
2015 8,861,000
2016 8,961,000
Thereafter 58,281,000

$100,840.000

Note 9. Employee Retirement Plans

All employees of the System and affiliates participate in the Genesis Health System Pension Plans. The
plans consist of both a defined benefit pension ptan and an employer paid match on employee
contributions to a defined contribution plan. Pension expense for the emplayer paid match to the defined
contribution plan was approximately $1,343,000 and $1,255,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and
2010, respectively,

Effective July 1, 2005, current participants in the defined benefit pension plan were given the option to
remain in the defined benefit pension pian or to elect o move to the Genesis Retirement Acgount
program, at which time their benefits in the defined benefit pension plan were frozen at current levels, All
new full and pari-time employees that have worked more than 1,000 hours during a prior calendar year
will participate in the new defined contribution plan, with contributions made by the System as specified in
the program based on years of service.

Effective December 31, 2008, the Board of Directors of the System adoptad a resolution to freeze the

deﬁned_beqeﬁt pension plan. Under terms of the freeze, employees with af least five years of service and
a combination of age and years of service of 70 were grandfathered.
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The Compensation — Retirement Benefits Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codlfication requires
balance sheet recognition of the overfunded or underfunded status of pension and postretirement benefit
plans. Actuarial gains and losses, priar service costs or credits and any remaining transition assets or
obiigations that have not been recognized under previous accounting standards, must be recognized in
the changes in unrestricted net assets, As a result, the System has recognized the underfunded status of
the defined benefit pension plan in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2011
and 2010, The accrual for the defined benefit pension plan asset or liability is based on a comparison of
the fair value of Plan assets to the Plan's projected benefit obligation,

Employee Retirement Plans (Continued)

The defined benefit pension plan is measured annually at June 30. Information about the Plan follows:

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year

2011

2010

$ (160,096,789)

$(131,862.015)

Sarvice cosl {2,087,076) (1.846,051)
Interest cost (8,787.842) (8,713,253)
Actuarial gain (loss);
Impact of change in assumptions 2,238,861 {23,015,283)
Other (591,500) (287,324)
Benefits paid 6,360,848 5,627,137
Projected benefit obligation at end of year (162,873,497} (160,096,789)
Fair value of plan assets 167,073,497 131,178,659
Funded status, plan assets {lags than)
benefit obligation $ (59000000 % (28,818,130

Rollforward of accrued benefit (liability):
Accrued benefit (liability) on balance sheet, beginning of year

$ (28,918,130)

$ (28,045,853)

Return on plan assets 26,255,687 18,889,634
System contributions 6,000,000 15,000,000
Change in plan liability {9,237,557) (33,861,911)

Accrued [liability) on balance sheet, end of year

Components of net periodic pension cost, which is included
as a companent of employee benefits expanse on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets, consist of;

$ (5900000}

$ (28918130)

Sarvice cost $ 2087076 $ 1,846,051
Interest cost 8,797,842 8,713,253
Expected return on plan assetls (10,793,756) (10,526,920}
Amortizatien of unrecognized net loss 3,871,916 1,545,610
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost (credit) ~ (63,118) {63,118)
$ 3899860 § 1514876
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2011 2010
Amounts not yet recognized as components of net periodic
pension cost;
Net actuarial loss $ 58601688 % 795682826
Prior service cast {credit) {330,241) (393,359
Unrecognized amounts, end of yaar 58,271,447 79,189,467
Unrecognized amounts, beginning of year 79,189,467 65,732,066
Current year change $ (20,918,020) % 13457401
Assumptions used in computations:
In computing ending cbligations:
Discount rate 5.75% 5.50%
Rate of compensation Increase 4.00% 4.00%
In computing net pericdic benefit cost:
Discount rate 5.60% 8.75%
Expected return on assets 7.45% 7.45%
Rate of compensation increass 4.00% 4.00%

The expected return on plan assets is based upon a blend of historical returns and the System’s estimate
of a long-term rate of return,

Management's objective is to maximize long-term returns while reducing fosses In order 1o mest future

benefit abligations. Management follows the policy of using historical evidence in computing expected
return on assets.
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The fair values of the System'’s defined benefit pension plan assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 by
asset category, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy as described
in Note 6, are as follows;

Investments at Fair Value as of June 30, 2011

Fair Value Level 1 lLevel 2 Level 3
Common Stocks:
Measllhcare £ 0133865 § 9133865 § . - -
Financlal 9,165,394 9,165,394 - .
Consumer Discretionary 13,600,739 13,600,738 - -
Energy 5,624 908 5,624,998 - -
Information Technology 14,262,079 14,262,078 - -
Industrlals 7172770 TATLTIO - -
ADR's (American Depository Recelpts) 4,110,831 4,110,834 - -
Materials 2,002,638 2,002,638 - -
Consumer Staples 2,888,170 2,888,170 - -
Ullilties 830,658 830,658 - -
Telecommunication Services 734,332 734,233 - -
Fixed Income Mutual Fund, PIMCO Tota! Return Fund 32,019,921 32,018,921 - -
Equity Mutual Funds,
Thomburg Intemational Value Fund 18,451,768 18,451,798 - -
Equity Collective Investment Fund, J.P. Morgan
Extended Duration Fund 34,582,632 - 34,582,632 -
154,580,926 s 120,008,284 § 34582632 § .
Other plan assets, cash and cash equivalents 2,482,511
Total plan assots 2 1575073!497
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Invastments at Fair Value as of Jung 30, 2010

Falr Valus Level 1 Lavel 2 Lawet 3
Commeon Stocks:
Healthcare § 3928334 35 3928334 % . H -
Financlal 1,681,434 1,681,434 - -
Coansumer Discretionary 3247 745 3,247,745 . -
Energy 1,430,866 1,430,866 - -
Infarmation Tachnology 7.037.280 7.037.260 . -
Industrials 740,466 740,466 - -
ADR's {American Depository Raceipts} 736,022 736,022 . -
Fixed income Mutual Fung, PIMCO Total Return Fund 32,185,855 32,185955 - -
Eguity Mutuat Funds:
Lord Abbett Small Cap Blend Fund 14,740,729 14,740,729 . -
Quantltative Equity Large Cap Vatue AP Trusl 18,048,432 - 18,048,432 -
Thomburg internationai Valus Fund 14,178,008 14,178,088 - -
Equity Collective Investment Fund, J.P. Morgan
Extended Duration Fung A2 460 424 . 32,460,424 -
$ 130415768 ; ?9!906 810 __§ 50,508,856 3 -
Other plan asseis, cash and cash equivalents 762,883
Total plan assets i 131,178,850

The following table sets forth additional disclosure of the System’s defined benefit pension plan assets

whose fair vatue is estimated using net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) as of Jung 30,
2011 and 2010:

Fair Value tInfunded Redamption Rademptlon
2011 2010 Commitmen!  Frequercy Neotice Pesliod

Investments:
Egulty Mutual Fund, Quanittative
Equity Large Cap Value AP
Trust (A} [ - § 18048432 § - Monthly None
Equity Collactive Investmeni Fund,
J.P, Morgan Extended Duratlon
Fund (B) 34,582,632 32,480,424 - Daily 1 Day
5 34582632 § 50508856 § -

(A)  The fund seeks to provide long-term growth of capltal through a diversified portfolio
comprised primarily of common stocks of high quality, medium to large sized U.S, based
companies with leading compstitive positions. This fund was redeemed during the year
ended June 30, 2011.

(B}  The fund primarily invests in coliateralized mortgage obllgations, corporate bonds and U.S.
treasury securities. This fund can be redeemed daily at the current net asset value per share
based on the fair value of the underlying assets. The falr value of this investment has been

estimated using the net asset value per share of the investments provided by the fund
manager,
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The following summarizes target asset allocation as of June 30, 2011 and major asset categories as of
June 30, 2011 and 2010:

Target
Allocation 2011 2010
Domestic equity securities:
Large cap 28.0% 32.9% 28.3%
Small cap 11.0 12.6 11.2
International equity securities 11.0 11.8 10.8
Fixed income 50.0 42.7 48.7
100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Management's obective is to maintain adequate levels of diversification among plan assets. Management
monltors the allocation on an ongoing basis and wilt allocate plan assets accordingly in the subsequent
quarter.

The System expects to contribute approximately $6,000,000 to its defined benefit pension plan during the
year ending June 30, 2012,

Benefit payments from the definad benefit pension plan are axpected to be paid as follows:

Year ending June 30;

2012 $ 6,600,000
2013 6,800,000
2014 7,100,000
2015 7,600,000
2018 8,000,000
Thereafter 50,700,000

3 86!800!000

Physician empioyees of the System are eliglble to participate In non-quaiified deferred compensation
plans. The plans allow participants to defer a portion of their salary into the plans, The plan assets are
held for the benefit of participating employees. The liability to these participants is recorded at the same
amount as the plan assets’ value. The assets which are included in investments and corresponding
noncurrent liability of the non-qualified deferred compensation plans recorded on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets are approximately $8,717,000 and $5,022,000 as of June 30, 2011 and
2010, raspectively.
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Note 10. Income Tax Matters

GHS lowa, GHS illincis, the Genesis Foundation, the Mini Foundation and the Workers' Compensation
Trust are exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Interna! Revenue Cade,
GenVentures is subject to income taxes. Misericordia Assurance Company, Ltd. Is a foreign corporation
not subject to income taxes,

in lieu of corporate income taxes, the partners of The Larson Center Partnership and members of
Davenport SRS Leasing, LLC and GenGastro, LLC are taxed on their propartionate share of the
respaclive organization's inéome, deductions, losses and credits. Therefcre, the accompanying
consclidated financial statements do not include any provision for income taxes for these entities.

Deferred taxes for GenVentures are provided on & liability method whereby deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating foss and tax credit carryforwards, and
deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the
differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than
het that some portlon or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized, Deferred tax assets and
liabllities are adjusted for the effects of changes in the tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. The
deferred taxes for GenVentures relate primarily to net operating less carryforwards, property and
equipment, allowance for doubtful accounts and accrued compensation.

Net deferred taxes conslst of the following components as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets $ 1901000 § 2,318,000
Less valuation allowance {1,901,000) (2,318,000
b - $ -

For the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, there are no current income tax provisions due to the
utilizatlon of the net operating loss camyforward.

As of June 30, 2011, GenVentures, for fedaral income tax purposes, has net operating loss camyforwards
which are available {0 offset future federal taxable incoma and federal tax liabilities. These carryforwards
expire from 2012 through 2027. The carryforwards expiring in future years are as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2012 $ 828,000

2013 1,000

2014 -

2015 -

2016 -

Thereafter 3,449,000
' $ 4,378,000
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Note 10. Income Tax Matters (Continued)
Uncertainty in income taxes:

GHS lowa, GHS lilincls, the Genesis Foundation, the lllini Foundation and the Workers' Compensation
Trus! all file a Form 990 {Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax) annually. When these
returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by
the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the marits of the position taken or
the amount of the position that would ultimately be sustained, Examples of {ax positions cormmon to
health systems include such matters as the following: the tax exempt status of each entity, the nature,
characterization and taxability of joint venture Income and various positions relative to potential sources
of unrefated business taxable income. Unrelated business taxable income is reported on Form 990T,
as appropriate. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in
the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes that it is more likely
than not that the position will be sustained upon axamination, including the resolution of appeals or
littgation processes, if any.

Tax positions are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the "more likely
than not” recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than
50% likely to be realized on settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits
assoclated with tax positions taken that exceseds the amount measured as described above is reflected
as a liability for uncertain tax benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets along with any
associated Interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination.

Forms 990 and 990T filed by GHS lowa, GHS lllinois, the Genesis Foundation, the illini Foundation and
the Workers' Compensation Trust are subject te examination by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) up
to three years from the extended due date of each return. Forms 990 and 980T filed by GHS lowa,
GHS lllinois, the Genesis Foundation, the lMinl Foundation and the Weorkers' Compensation Trust are
no longer subject to examination for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 and prior. GenVentures is a
taxable organization and currently files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various
state jurisdictions. GenVentures is no longer subject to income tax examinations for years June 30,
2006 and prior.

A reconciliation of the uncertaln tax positions as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows;

2011 2010
Balance, beginning of year . 8 45000 % 350,000
Reductions for tax positions of prior years as
a result of lapse of the applicable
statute of limitations (45,000) (40,000)
Settlements - (285,000)
Balance, end of year 3 - 3 45000
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Note 10. Income Tax Matters (Continued)

As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the total amount of uncertain tax pasitions have reduced income tax
expense and have increased excess of revenue over expenses by $45,000 and $40,000, respeactively,

Interest expense associated with uncertain tax positions from the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2040
is approximately none and $7,000, respectively. No amount has been accrued for penalties,

During the vears ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, none and $265,000, respectively, in federal and state
income taxes were paid for uncertain tax positions existing as of June 30, 2008 and 2008, as amended
or past due income tax returns were filed.

Note 11, Self-Insurance, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Self-insured claims:

The System is primarily self-insured, up to certain limits, for general and professional liability, workers'
compensation and employee group health and dental claims, The System has purchased stop-loss
insurance for generat and professional liability ¢laims, which will reimburse the System for individual
claims in excess of $2,000,000 annually or aggregate claims exceeding $6,000,000 annually, The
System has purchased stop-loss insurance for workers' compensation claims in excess of $400,000
annually for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, or aggregate claims in excess of 35,000,000,
Insurance coverage is also maintained for health and dental claims in excess of $150,000.

Operations are charged with the costs of claims reported and an estimate of claims incurred but not
reported. Total expense under the self-insured programs was approximately $26,275,000 and
$31,560,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. An independent actuarial firm
Is utilized to assist in determining the provision for general, professional and workers' compensation
losses, including incurred but not reported losses. The labilities for estimated self-insured ¢laims,
including unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, recarded on the accompanying consclidated
balance sheets are $37 455,000 and $386,779,000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which
include approximately $18,303,000 and $19,063,000, respectively, that are included in other long-term
liabilities, The amount of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 was
approximately $5,840,000 and $5,934,000, respectively, that Is included in other receivables.

The determination of such claims and expenses and the appropriateness of the related liability is
continually reviewed and updated. It is reasonably possible that the accrued estirated liability for self-
insured claims may need to be ravised in the short term. In addition, participants of self-insurance
programs may be required to make retrospective contributions as deemed necessary if [oss experience
is worse than anticipated,

GFMC participates in a cooperative of University of lowa-affiliated medical education foundations for

the purpose of professional liability Insurance to cover claims on a ¢laims-made basis with a loss fmit
of $2,000,000 per occurrence and an annual limit of $4,000,000 and no deductible,
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Note 11.  Self-Insurance, Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Continued)
Accounting for conditional asset retirement obligations:

The Conditional Asset Retirement Cbligation Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification
clarifies when an entity is required to recognize a liability for a conditional asset retirement obligation,
specifically as it related to its legal obligation to perform asset retirement activities, such as asbestos
removal, on its existing properties, Over the past ten years, management has systematically renovated,
replaced or newly constructed the majority of the physical plant facilities, resulting in a relatively small
portion of the facility with any remaining hazardous material. Management of the System belisves that
there is an indeterminate seftlement date for the asset retirement obligations because the range of time
over which the System may settle the obligation is unknown and does not believe that the estimate of
the liability related to these asset retirement activities is a material amount as of June 30, 2011 and
2010.

Laws and regulations:

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state and local
governments, Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretatlon, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. These laws and
regulations include, but are not limited to, accreditation, licensure, government heafth care program
participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services and Medicare and Medicaid fraud and
abuse. Recently, government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations
concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers.
Violations of these laws and regulations could result in exclusion from government health care program
participation, together with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant
repayment for past reimbursement for patient services received. The System baelieves that It Is In
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending ot threatened
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing.

CMS RAC Program:

Congress passed the Medicare Modernization Act in 2003, which among other things established a
demenstration of The Medicare Recovery Audit Contractor (RAC) program. The RAC's identified and
corrected a slgniflicant amount of improper overpayments and/or underpayments to providers. In 2008,
Congress passed the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2008 which autharized the expansion of the
RAC program to all 50 states. The System has been subject to such an audit and may continue to be
subject to additional audits at some time in the future, The System has accrued an estimated liability,
which ls included in due to third-party payers as of June 30, 2011, as a reserve for such audits based
on the number of RAC audit requests, the System's historical defense rate and the analysis and

reviews of a consulting firm. It is reasonakbly possible that the recorded estimates will change materially
in the near term,
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Note 11.  Self-insurance, Contingent Liabllities and Commitments {Continued)
Current economic conditions:

The current economic environment presents hospitals with unprecedented circumstances and
challenges, which in some cases have resulted in large declines in the falr value of investments and
other assets, large declines in contributions, constraints on liquidity and difficulty abtaining financing.
The financial statements have been prepared using values and information currently available to the
System.

Current economic conditions, including the rising unemployment rate, have made it difficult for certain
of the System's patients to pay for services rendered. As employers make adjustments to health
insurance plans or more patients become unemployed, services provided to self-pay and other payors
may significantly impact net patient service revenue, which could have an adverse impact on the
System's future operating results. Further, the effect of economic conditions on the state may have an
adverse effect on cash flows refated to the Medicald program,

Given the volatility of current economic conditions, the values of assets and liabilities recorded in the
financia! statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future adjustments in investment values
and allowances for accounts and contributions receivable that could negatively impact the System’s
ability to meet debt covenants or maintain sufficient liquidity.

Health care reform:

As a result of recently enacted federal health care reform legislation, substantial changes are
anticipated in the United States health care system. Such legislation includes numerous provisions
affecting the delivery of health care services, the financing of health care costs, reimbursement of
health care providers and the legal obligations of health insurers, providers and employers, These
provisions are currently slated to take effect at specified imes over approximately the next decade.

Commitments:
Approximate minimum payments reguired under a service contract as of June 30, 2011 are

summarized below. The term of this service contract is for a period of ten years (until fiscal year 2018),
unless the System terminates the contract for cause:

Year gnding June 30:

2012 $ 1,845,000
2013 1,845,000
2014 1,845,000
2015 1,845,000
2016 1,845,000
Thergafter 3,537,000

$ 12,762,000
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Note 12. Net Asset Restrictions

Temporarily restricted net assets held by the System are restricted by donors for the following purposes
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Cardiac research % 403,595 % 508,798
Visiting nurse programs 3,351,713 2,688,583
Hospice house 2,004,442 3,474,943
Heart of Mercy financial assistance 560,531 224,814
Inventory and equipment for GMC - Davenport 2,998,714 2,896,714
Cancer research 1,000,536 903,845
Adler Fund 1,276,072 944,514
Employee assistance fund 525,016 378,206
Other 3,994,249 4,085,387

3 16112867 _$ 16206874

During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, temporarily restricted net asset ware released from
donor restrictions by incuming expenditures satisfying their restricted purposes for property and
equipment and reimbursement of operating expenses, in the amount of $3,994,125 and $958,547,
respectively.

Permanently restricted net assets are rastricted to investment in parpetuity, the income from which is
expendable primerily to support the Heart of Mercy financial asslstance program. The permanently
restricted net assets held by the System are for the following purposes as of June 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Heart of Mercy financial assistance $ 1483267 § 1375974
Other 420,604 275,584

$ 1903871 & 1651558

Note 13. Minimum Future Rentals

The following is a schedule by year of approximate future minimum rentals, net of rentals from affiliates,
to be received under GenVentures' noncancetable operating leases as of June 30, 2011:

Year ending June 30;

2012 $ 1,714,000
2013 1,630,000
2014 1,580,000
2015 1,149,000
2016 1,085,000
Thereafter 6,664,000

Total approximate future

minimum rentals $ 13,822,000
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Note 14.  Interest in Net Assets of Foundation

The DeWitt Community Hospital Foundation {DCH Foundation), whose financial statements are not
included In the accompanying consolidated financial statements since it Is not under the control of GHS,
was established to establish, promote and suppar facilities and services providing health care for sick,
injured, disabled, indigent or aged persons. The support is to be provided to, or in cooperation with, other
organizations including, without imitation, hospitals, ambulatory care services, nursing care facilities, and
agencies or facilities providing care for parsons in their homas, As of June 30, 2011 and 2010 the DCH
Foundation had unaudited assets of approximately $738,000 and $654,000, respectively. DCH
Foundation's assets consist primarily of cash and pledges receivable. A portion of the DCH Foundation's
net assets have been specified by their original donor to be used specifically for the benefit of Genesis
Medical Center — Dewitt.

Note 15. Concentratlons of Credit Risk

The System grants credit without collateral ta its patients, most of whom are area residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements, The mix of the System's gross receivables from patients and
third-party payors as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows;

2011 2010
Medicare . 29% 25%
Medicaid 8 12
Blue Cross 13 2]
Other third-party payers 16 19
Patients 4 35
100% 100%

As of June 30, 2011, the System had deposits exceeding the faderal depository insurance limits in

various majer financial institutions. Management believes the credit risk related to these deposits Is
minimal.

The System routinely invests its surpius operating funds in money market funds, Thase funds genarally
invest in highly liquid U.S. government and agency obligations and various investment grade corporate
obligations. Investments in money market funds are not insured or gquaranteed by the U.S. government or

by the underlying corporation; however, management believes that credit risk related to these
investments is minimal,
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Note 16, Acqulsition

On December 31, 2010, the System acquired an additional 16.67% interest in GenGastro, LLC (a single-
specialty gastroenterclogy ambulatory surgery center) for $5,148,000, increasing the System's ownership
in GenGastro, LLC to 66.67%. [n accordance with the accounting guldance on Not-for-Profit Entities:
Mergers and Acquisitions, the System remeasured its previously held 50% interest of GenGastro, LLC
{which had a recorded value of approximately $493,000 at the date of acquisition) at fair value and
recognized a gain of approximately $14,859,000. This gain is Included in nonoperating gains and {losses)
on the June 30, 2011 consolidated statement of operations,

The System previously accounted for its 50% membership interest of GenGastro, LLC under the equity
method of accounting and reperted its 50% share of GenGastro, LLC's net income (loss). From
December 31, 2010 {(date of acquisition), the results of GenGastro, LLC's operations have been included
in the congsolidated financial statemants,

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for GenGastro, LLC, estimated fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed and fair value at the acquisition date of the noncontrolling
interests in GenGastro, LLC,

Consideration:

Cash § 5,148,000
Fair value of the System's interest in GenGastro, LLC
at acquisition date 15,452,000
$ 20,600,000
Recognized amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed:
Current assets 3 679,364
Property and equipment 408,154
Current liabilitles (97,.951)
Noncontrolling interests in GenGastro, LLC (10,300,000)
Goodwill 29,910,433
$ 20,600,000
Excess of fair value over equity acquired for GenGastro, LLC:
Attributable to the System $ 14,958,732
Attributable to noncontrolling interests 9,806,732
$ 24765464

Fair values of the assets, liabilities and noncontrofiing interests at the acquisition date were estimated by
a third-party applying the market approach and income approach. The fair value measurement is based
on significant inputs that are not observable in the market and, therefore represents a Level 3
measurement as defined in the Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures Topic of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification. Key assumptions include a discount rate of 15%, a terminal growth rate based on
long-term sustainable growth of 3% and financial muitipies of compantes deemed to be similar to
GenGastro, LLC,

The geodwill of approximately $29,910,000 arising from the acqulsition consists primarily of current and
future expected eamings and profitability.

The amount of GenGastro, LLC's revenue included in the System's consolidated statement of operations
for the year ended June 30, 2011 was $3,151,000. Excess of revenue ovar expenses and changes In net
assets included in the System’s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 2011
are approximately $2,156,000.
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Note 17.  Pending Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2010, Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2010-23, Health Care Entities (Topic 954)
Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure, was issued. ASU 2010-23 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2010, ASU 2010-23 addresses the diversity in the accounting for charity care
disclosures, which some entities determine on the basis of a cost measurement, while others use a
revenue measurement. ASU 2010-23 requires that the measurement of charity care for disclosure
purposes be based on the direct and indirect costs of providing the charity care. Management s
gvaluating the impact this ASU may have on the Sysiem’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2010, ASU 2010-24, Health Carg Entities (Topic 954) Presentation of Insurance Claims and
Related insurance Recaverles, was issued. ASU 2010-24 Is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2010. ASU 2010-24 addresses the diversity in the accounting for medical malpractice and
similar liablilties and their related anticipated insurance recoveries by heaith care entities that mostly have
netted insurance recoveries against the accrued liabllity, although some have presented the anticipated
insurance recavery and the liability on a gross basls, The ASU clarifies that a health care entity should not
net insurance recoveries against a related claim liabillty; the amount of the claim fiability should be
determined without consideration of insurance recoveries. Management is evaluating the tmpact this ASU
may have on the System’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Fair Valus Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmenis to
Achfeve Common Fair Vafue Measurament and Disclosure Requiraments in .8, GAAP and IFRSs. This
ASU was issued to clarify FASB's intent on application of certain aspects of existing fair value
measurement raquirements and to change ceriain requirements for measuring fair value and for
disclosing information about fair value measuremants. These changes (mostly applicable to financial
instruments in levels 2 and 3) include guidance on measuring the fair value of financial instruments that
are managed within a portfolio, application of premiums and discounts, and additional disclosures about
fair value measurements, FASB has concluded that this ASU will achieve the objective of developing
common fair value measurement and disclosure requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. This ASU is
effective for the System for annual reporting perlods beginning after December 15, 2011, Management is
in the process of evaluating the potential impact this ASU will have on the System’s consolldated financlal
statements.

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-07, Heslth Care Entities (Topic 954) - Presentation and
Disclosure of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
for Certaln Health Care Entities. ASU 2011-07 requires health care entities that recognize significant
amounts of patient service revenue at the time the services are rendered even though they do not assess
the patient's ability to pay, to change the presentation of their statament of operations by reclassifying the
provision for bad debts associated with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a deduction
fram patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts). Additionally, ASU 2011-07
requires those heaith care entities to previde enhanced disclosure about their policies for recognizing
revenue and assessing bad debts, disclosures of patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances

and discounts) as well as qualitative and quantitative information about changes in the allowance for
doubtful accounts,

The provisions are effective for the first annual period ending after December 15, 2012, and Interim and
annual periods thereafter, with early adaption parmitted. The changes ta the presentation of the provisian
for bad debts related to patient service revenue in the statement of operations should be applled
retrospectively to all prior periods presented. The disclosures required by ASU 2011-07 should be
provided for the period of adoption and subsequent reporting periods. Management is assessing the
impact of the implementation of this ASU on the System's consalidated financial statements.
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Note 17.  Pending Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

The FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Intangibles — Goodwill and Qther (Topic 350); Testing Goodwill for
Impaimaent. The existing guidance under Accounting Standards Codification Topic 350 requires an entity
to test goodwill for impairment, on at least an annual basis, by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit
with its carrying amount, including goodwill (step ane), If the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its
carrying amount, the second step of the test must be performed to measure the amount of the impairment
loss, if any, This ASU gives an entity the optlen In its annual goodwill impairment test to first assess
revised qualitative factors to determine whether it is more fikely than not (a likelihood of more than 50%)
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount {qualitative assessment), 1f it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, an entity must still
perform the existing two-step impairment test. Otherwise, an entity would not ba required to perform the
existing two-step impairment test. This ASU is effective for the Systern for the first annual reporting period
beginning after Decembar 15, 2011,

Note 18. Functlonal Expenses

The System provides general health care services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
for the System's 501(c)(3) entities related to providing these services for the years ended June 30, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Health care services $ 423,174,810 $ 431,681,650
General, administrative and support services 89,012,051 90,088,732
Fund raising, net of intercompany contributions 1,081,481 790,880

$ 513268442 § 522562262

e = ———————

Included within general, administrative and support services are significant expendituras for informatian
systems which support the defivery of health care services.
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McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
CertHied Public Accountants

= McGladrey

Independent Auditor's Report
on the Supplementary Information

To the Audit and Compliance Commitiee
Genesis Health System
Davenport, lowa

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, The consolidating Information on pages 48 — 59 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis of the basic consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial
position and changes in nat assets of the individual organlzations. The consolidating information on
pages 48 — 59 has bean subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
consalidated financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon our audits and the reports of other
auditors as explained In our report on the basic financial statements on page 1, is fairly presented in all
material respects in relation to the basic consclidated financial statements taken as a whole.,

The accompanying community benefit information on pages 44 through 47 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic consolidated financial statements. This

information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic
consolidated financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on It

%C%//m%a/ Y

Bavenpori, lowa
October 25, 2011
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Genesis Health System
and Related QOrganlzations

Schedule of Community Benaflt
Year Ended June 30, 2011
{(Unaudited)

Genesis Health System contributed $38,132,600 in community benefit to the Quad City area in fiscal year
(FY) 2011. This represents an incraase of 51% when compared to FY 2010. Charity Care, reported as
charges foregone, in the amount of $31,815,963 was provided by the Health System compared to
$21.197,913 in FY 2010. Charity Care Is uncompensated care provided without expectation of
reimbursement, Charity Care Is distinct and separate from bad debt, which is care provided with an
expectation of compensation but which we were unable to collect. We do not count bad debt in our
community benefit reporting; however, bad debt for Genesis Health System totaled $27,792,024 for FY
2011, down 22% from $35,782,769 for FY 2010,

Unreimbursed Medlcald and other means-tested program costs are also not Included in cur community
benefit reporting; however, the unreimbursed Medicald and other means-tested program costs for FY
2011 were estimated at $11,627,808. The level of unreimbursed Medicaid costs increased 11%
compared to FY 2010’s leve! of $10,480,537.

Table 1 shows a 34% increase in community benefit for Genesis Medical Center (GMC) — Davenport
compared to FY 2010. GMC - Illini increased its community benefit by 75%. and GMC — DeWitt increased
by 22%. Other GHS community benefit increased by 1159% as we started to report subsidized losses in
FY 2011 for the community-based hospice and hospice house programs.

Table 1: Community Benefit by GHS Entity

Other GMC -

GHS Davanport GMC - lllini  GMC - DeWilt Total
FY2007 $ 330874 §$ 16266486 $ 2,754,361 $ 145117 5 19,496,838
Fy2008 592,354 20,933,460 2,747,135 243,876 24,516,925
FY2008 164,837 22,485,002 3,221,208 337,443 26,218,180
FY2010 234,749 20,715,176 3,068,714 404,892 25,323,531
Fya01i 2,955,378 27,718,979 6,964,127 494,116 38,132,600

This information is shown graphically In Graph 1.
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Millions

Community Benefit by GHS Entity

FY2009 Fyz010 Fv2011

FY2007 FY2008

®OtherGHS BGMC- Davenport BGMC - i UGMC-DeWIL\
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Graph 2 represents the communily benefit funding by category for each of the past five fiscal years.
Overall, community benefit funding increased 51% compared to FY 2010, Community Health
Improvement increased 131%, Community Building Activities increased 98% and Charity Care increased
50% compared to the prior year, while Health Professions Education decreased 54%, and Financial and
In-Kind Contributions decreased 38%.

GHS Community Benefit Totals

Millions

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 Ey 201
W harlty Care @ Sommurity Healih improvement {Categary A)
®Haalth Profesalens E lon (Category B) W Subsidized Heaith Sarvices [Category C)
:Rasnrch {Gategory D) OFinenzial and In-Xind Contributions (Category E)

|1+

Table 2: 2011 Category Comparisons by GHS Entity

Sommuntiy Hoalth Subsidzed Finangisl Community  Community
Health Professions Health and in-Kind Bulding Bensfit
Chartty Impravernent Educetion Serdces Ressarch  Contdbutions Acihities Operstiony
Cero {Catagory A} (CategoryB) (Category C) {CategoryD) (Category B}  (Category F} (Cwtegory G) Toied
GHS - Cther $ 1375991 % B3« § - $1,135742 % - 5 430008 % 7,085 % - $ 2.055074
GMC - Davenport 23,244 368 358,568 785,162 2,269,455 190,374 720,283 103 951 28408 27718578
GMC - Mind 6707475 14,188 2,758 72,984 - 62,701 13,884 48 8,064,127
GMC - Dewitt 198,129 a5 - 20,018 - 74,820 833 . 494,118
Totats § 2215063 3 ITIEIS S TFETNOE  $3.518200 $ 180374 § 1,287,010 $ 26,073 § 28,457 3J8,132,600
AL oA e ——— e
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Table 3: Category Comparisons for the Past Five Fiscal Years

Communtty Haalth Subsidized Financial Community  Community
Health Profasslong Haalth and In-Kind Building Benefit
Charlty Imgrovemant Education Garvicas Resaarch Contributions Activilies Cpurations

Cara ___ (Category A}  (CategoryB) (CategoryC) {Cetsgory D) (Category £} {Category F)  {Gategory G) Totsl

FY 2007 § 17,268,018 $ 280835 § 14M574 3 - $ 527 § 503434 § . $ - 319,495 BIB

FY 2008 20,288,556 287,835 2,685,852 - - 1,253,442 - - 24,516,625

FY 2009 22,903,258 148,661 1,448,871 57,123 195,483 1,337,504 66,348 £0,133 26,218,150

Fy 2010 21,197,913 183,450 1,712,397 - §7. 744 2,069,169 63,567 18,751 25,323,501

Fy 2011 31,815,983 ITTAE 87, 806 3,518,200 190,374 1,287,810 126,073 0457 38,132,800
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GHS GMS Chligated
Assets lowa Minois Elfminations Grovp *
Current Assets:
Ceash and cash equivelenis $ 53124950 $ 15B64240 § - $ 71,769,180
Short-term investments T04 456 - - 704,456
Recelvablas;
Patfienis, ne §0,717.960 14,981,228 - 5479188
Affillates 5,140,212 - {2,758.455) 2,369,757
Noles, afflliala 1,101,647 - - 1,101,947
Cther, mcluding ssests imited ax to use 8,480,948 938,387 - 7,842,345
Inventories, supplles and materiats 10,437,234 2,284 478 - 12,888,702
Prapaid expenses and deposits 5,121,663 368,768 . 5,510,451
Total current yxseta 143,261,387 37,214,102 {2,759,455) 177,718,044
Long Term Recelvablas and invesiments;
Atflate notes 13,512,181 - . 13,512,181
nvestment In subsidiaies 47,264,847 1.31),072 - 48,677 868
Investments 14,208,042 2457119 - 18,455,364
77,088,640 1,550,791 - 72,645,434
Assetn Limited as o Use:
Intamaily designated 157,770,420 . - 157,778,420
Under bond ind=nture, funds held
by trusies 5,235,342 663.832 . 5.850,175
Intarest in ned sssety of Foundetion 9,801,629 403,322 - 10,385,251
Donor restricted 4133745 - - 4,133,745
177,130,437 1,067,154 . 178,208,591
Proporty and Equipment, net 168,193,212 35,609,581 - 202,002,793
Cihar Apsets:
Bond Iysuence coly, nel §79,508 156,412 . 775820
Goodwill 220,444 - - 820,444
Other 88,507 - - 986,907
2,383,388 186,412 - 2.565.271
$ 566049515 § 75846040 §  ({2,750,455) Lﬂw

* The Qbligated Group includes Ganasls Health Systom = lawa (an lowa nonprofit corporation) and Genes's Haalth System - llinols {an
Hlinols not-for-profil corporation).
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Genesis

Hanlth
System
Genesis Workers' Misericordls
Hexith uii,] The Larton Compensation A Davenped
Services Hospital GenGasire, Conter GenVarures, Plan Coampany, SRS
Foundatian Foundatlon Le Parinership In¢, and Trusi Ltd. Laasing, LLC Eliminations Totad
3 Be4,157 % 13,758  § 28568 0§ 3BE97T % 438604 § 930981 § 83070 % 1,443,885 § - $ 76241207
. . . - 619,441 . . . - 1,323,897
. - 570,584 - 2,771,555 - . - - 79,121,728
- . . . - - 23,880 144,125 (2.831,582) -
. . . . . . . (1,701,047} -
148,497 451 9,075 1,577 419,188 2,015,452 3,976,332 - . 14,414,865
- - 6,417 - $82,183 - - - - 13,709,308
. . 7875 - 131,774 - 5,350 110,008 - 5,766,588
1,012 654 14,208 941,019 388,554 5,187,743 2,055,433 4711472 1402 018 {3,733,50%) 120,577,604
. . . . . . (13,512,181 .
. - . . - . . . {48,877 888} .
2,614,517 226,681 - - 1,048,000 11,970,035 22,072 377 - - 54,268,923
2,618,517 226,69) - - 1,048,000 11,070,035 22,072,377 - {62,190.070) 54,388,983
. . . . . . . - . 157,778,420
. - - . - - - . 5,898,175
- . - . - . - (9.657,402) 737,840
12,741,822 403,322 - . - - - - 17,276,608
12,741,822 403,222 - - - - - {9,657,402) 184,694,303
9,975 - 330,855 2,289,745 39317547 B . 5,376,045 - 248,326,560
. - . . . . . - - 775820
- - - . . - . - 29,910,433 30730377
- 82,184 - 722 401,491 - - - - 1,458,314
- BZ,164 - 3T AT 494 . - - 25,910,433 32,863,114
3 18,382,968 § 726415 % 1273874 § 1682021 § 44932581 § 1 4i92 5466 3 26783840 § 8,718,083 § (4587054B) § 7OV 950501
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Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2011

GHS GHS Obligated
Llabitities and Nat Agsots and Equity lewn Nlinsls Eliminations Graup
Curreni Liabililies
Gurrent matudilles of lang-term debt $ 5850000 % 727,977 § - % B5ETRYY
Accounts payabla:
Trade 14,653,785 1,975,491 - 16,668,778
AHiliztes - 2,759,455 {2,759,455)
Actrued seleres and wages 13,925,530 525,388 - 14 450 B18
Accrued pald leave 14,073,483 2165375 . 18,238,858
Dua ta thrd-party payors 3,525,308 1,040,103 . 5,471,502
Unpaid lossea and Ioss adjustment
expensey . -
Other pocrued sxpenses 3,303,977 £31,180 . 3935157
Total current |labllitios 55,381,584 10,731,05% (2,759,455} 53,353,168
Long-Term Debt, lese curant maturties 83,312,645 7,780,000 - 91,082,643
Unpaid Losses and Loss Adlustmeni Expanses, Ratlrement
Bernafits and Other Long: Term Liabilities 15,504,348 G873 208 . 18,267,558
Tatal liablitties 154,288,577 18,154,267 (2,759.455) 170,683,389
Net Assets and Eguity:
Common stock . . .
Addlliona! pald-in capltal - - -
Retained enrnings (deficit) - - -
Mombera and pertners’ equity - -
Linrestrictad ANT 625,284 58,288,451 . 453,923 715
Nongontrolling interests - unrestricted . . -
Temporanty rasirictied 14,125,674 359,000 . 14,484 704
Parmanently restricted - 44,2692 - 44,292
411,760,938 56,691,773 - 458,452 711
$ S6B049515 § TEBAE040 5§ (2.,759.455) § 635,135,100

" The Gbligated Group Includes Genesis Health System — lowa (an fowa nonprofit corporation} and Genesis Health Systern — lllingis (an

llinois not-for-proflt corporation).
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Ganasiz

Health
Systam
Gonesis Workers’ Misesicordis
Heatth ini The Larson Compensatlon Assuranca Davenport
Services Hoapltal GenGastro, Center GenVenturas, Plan Company, SRS
Foundailon Foundeiion [EEe) Partnemship Inc. end Trust Ltd. Leasing, LLC  Efiminations Tolal
2 . 5 5 Eid 166 § 1216752 § . ] § 1085457 % (1,128,549) § 8,245803
35,450 72,593 5,483 659,930 21,005 61,224 575 4,500 17,530,976
510,388 49,923 - 4,500 1,864 881 T7.570 - - {2,636,082) *
- 15,659 . 475,547 - - . 14,943,124
- - 20,725 - 385,584 - . - 16,646,147
. . . . . . . 5,471,502
- - - 6,052,487 9,311,553 - - 15,364,020
833,285 8598 - 239,432 625,721 - - - 5,646,273
1,380,143 58,621 110377 783,581 5,353,195 6,151,042 ATV 1,058,032 {3,760, 111} 83,847,845
- 46,960 - 181,397 13,830,002 - 4,782,326 {13,485,579) 05,477,061
- - - 34,429 - 18,535 871 - - 32,837 858
1,389,143 105,581 110,277 24,888 19,317,628 8,151,042 25,800,448 5,818,358 (17.245,880) 213,183,182
- - . - 1,000 120,000 - (121,000)
. - - 28,821,772 - - (28,821,772} -
- - - (3.207.417) - 755401 - 2452418 -
- 1,163,207 1,757,133 - - - 059,705 {3.880,135)
2,252,003 217,512 . . - 8,774,426 - - 755401 485,923,057
- - - B - - - - 10,247 834 10,547 834
10,882,242 359,030 . - - - . - (2.513.110) 16,112,847
1,859,579 44,292 - - . - - {44,202) 1,803,671
14,983,825 820,00 1,163,297 1,757,133 25614 955 4,774,426 875,401 959,705 {20,424 B58) A4 TET 420
$ 18,382 968 76 A15  § 1273874 & 26862,027 5 44932661 % 14625488 § 26783645 § 6778063 % (45870.548) §707.950,581
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Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2010

GHS GHS Obiigated
Assety loved Wiroiy Eliminations Group -
Current Ansets:
Cash snd cash eguivalents $ 42722820 10,85).872 § - $ 53576482
Short-term investmants T43,809 - . 743,808
Receivebles:
Petiants, net 62,527,238 15,687,980 - 79,185,228
Affillotes §,867 963 - {2,568,184) 3,209,704
Notes, sffiliate 1,037,930 - - 1,037,830
Other 4964, 118 574,291 . 5,542, 407
inveriories, supplies and materialy 8,362 564 2,089,559 11,482,532
Prepsid axpenses and depostls 3,76E147 573,203 4441230
Total current aassts 131,028,570 30,849,125 (2,558, 184) 159,309,511
Long-Term Receivabies and Imvesiments:
Affiliate notes 14,639,185 - - 14,639,185
I :] tin subsidiar 2T 478286 1,115,840 . 28,554,126
Invastmants 14,099,552 275,845 14,375,397
56,217,023 1,381,685 . 57,608,708
Anpeis Limied as to Use:
tnlernally detignated 136,440,158 - - 136 4401358
Uritar bong indenture, funds held
by irustes 13,102 894 863,168 13,458 880
Interasl It net aazats of Foundation 8,855,025 744,305 7,569,330
Danor resincted 4,088 817 - 40888017
180,576,594 1407 474 181 804,165
Property and Equlpmant, net 170,252,383 36,481 483 . 208,713,676
Other Assets:
Bond lesusnce costs, ne} B41,318 109,018 . 750,334
Goodwill B20.4d4 - - B20,444
Olhar 951,264 8,729 - 80,893
2413026 118,745 - 251
$ 520487698 70220519 $ (2,588,184) 3 538,143.031

* The Obligated Group includes Genasis Haalth Systemn — lowa (an lows nonprofit corporation) and Genesis Health System = [Ifinols (an

Nlinois nopt-for-profit carparation),
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Genesls

Health
System
Genesis Workers' Misercordia
Hesfth Iifind Tha Larsen Compenssil A Davenpen
Senices Hospital Center GenVenturos, Plan Company, SRS
Foundation Found: Parinership ne. and Trust Ltd, Laasing, LLC Eliminations Tols!
5 585,503 § gr.502 § 438335 % 4p,37 8 §32,075 BB} § 1,453,247 . § 58,089,247

. 611,402 . . 1,355.211

. . 2,117,172 . . . - 81,302,404

. . . . - 132,778 {3.432,562) -

. . . R . - - (1,037,830) -

182,755 451 - 808 663 2047043 4,015,894 - - 12575013

- - 4,071,168 - - 12,562,702

- - - 103,874 - 6,149 4,551,157

48,349 67,953 436,325 5,650,483 2.976.118 4,080,373 1,586,125 (4,470,492) 170,438,734

- - . - . . {14,639,185)

- - - - - - (28,504,128) -
2,585,872 215,681 1,048,000 11,803,232 22,505 435 - - 52,821,697
2,985,972 215,681 - 1,048,000 11,603,232 22,595,435 - 143,233.311) 52.821.687

. . - - - - - 135 440,150

- - - . - 13,855,880

. - - . . - (8,945,198} 854,132

12,371,476 744,305 . - - - . - 17,204,300
12,371,178 744,305 - - - - {8,045,188) 168,154,450
9,975 - 2,423 M7 40,042,077 - - 6,468,084 - 255,857,359

- - . - . . - 750,334

- - - - - - - 820, 444

- 81,870 - 494 183 - - - - 1,536,851

- 81,670 - 494,158 - - - - 3,147,820

3 168115473 § 1139589 § MBZ $ 47241728 § 14582350 § 26685508 § 8.05‘,2_0.9 § (54,849,001} § 650,177,850
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Genesls Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidating Balance Sheet Information
June 30, 2010

GHS GHS Obligatod
Liahilties and Net Assats and Equity lowa Hingis Ellminations Group *
Current Liabilities:
Current maturithes of long-term debt 5,807,506 H 803502 § - S 8,211,408
Accounts payabls;
Tragde 15,445 088 2221880 - 17,871,658
Affiliates B 2,568,184 {2,588,1B4) -
Accrued sslaries and wages 12,613,689 405,833 . 13,018,822
Accrued paid leave 13,528,706 2,050,675 15,579,201
Due to third-party payors 876427 2,103,440 2,782,867
Unpsid losses and loas adjustment
axpanses - - . .
Olher acgrued sxponses 3,732,584 101,328 4435313
Total current llabilities 51,612,981 10,655,453 {2.568,184) 55,700,250
Long-Tarm Dabi, lzas currenl maturitios 89,199, 4B8 B217 977 . 87,407 463
Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses, Relirement
Bansfits and Cthar Long-Tamn LiabHiles 36,083,405 590,785 . 37,554,180
Total flabintdes 177,785,872 19,454 215 (2,586, 184) 194,661,903
Net Assets and Equity;
Common stock . - .
Additione! pald-in caplial - . -
Relefned earnings {(defich) - . . .
Members and pertners’ equily - - - -
Unrestrictad 331,777.982 50,019,998 . 381,767,981
Noncontrolling Interest - unrestricted - . . -
Temporarly restricled 10,943,642 711,000 - 11,854 842
Fermmanently restrcted - 33,305 - 32,305
342 721,824 50 764,304 - 303,406,126
520,487,898 § 70,228,519 § [4,568,184) § 588,148,001

° The Obligated Group Includes Genests Health Systern — lowa {an lowa nonprofit corporation) and Genesis Health System —fllinola (an llinols

not-far-profit carporation).




Ganesls

Heatth
System
Genesls Workers' Miserleardla
Hestih ind The Larson Compensation Agsurance Davenport
Servicon Hoapial Cenler GanVaniures, Fian Company, SRS
Feundation Foundation Partrarshio Ing, ond Trust Lig, Lensing, LLC Efminwtians Totsd
5 - $ 3 413,805 1,143,515 3 - 3 - - 9T ETZ § (1082615 % 7,688,885
47,201 11,429 705,748 13,328 59,524 3,106 . 18,512,293
785,938 180 554 16,846 2 461,835 7.501 [3,432,562)
- - 623,522 - - - - 13,643,144
- - - az8.018 . - . - 15,007 419
- - . - - - - 2,762 867
- - - - 5413418 5,488 583 - - 13,802,001
€85,178 1,749 239,924 628,099 . - - 5,970,263
1,478,315 182,203 BA7,104 5,290,555 5,434,337 B.S48 407 980,778 {4,485 177} 76 408 872
- 36,828 866,565 15,148,612 - . 5817.783 (14,614 500} 104,482,761
- . - 21,440 . 17,262,000 - - 54,837 830
1,478 15 218,144 1,373,86% 21,080,807 5,434,337 25,810,407 6,708,561 (18,109,677} 237,727,263
- - 1,000 - 120,000 - {121,000 -
- - 28,824,772 - - - (28,821,772)
- . - {2,641,851) - ¥E55,401 - 1,888,250 -
- - 4,486,013 . . 1,255 648 (2,741,581} .
2,285,990 176,143 - - 9,148,013 - - 755401 304,143,518
- - - - . 443 658 448,658
10,752,825 711,000 . - - - - (6,911,883} 16,208,874
1,818,253 33,305 - - - - {33,308) 1,651,558
14,837 158 §20,448 1,486,013 26,161,121 9,148,013 675,401 1,255,648 {35,530,324) 412,450,806
$ 16,11547) § 1,129,589 5 2B59,682 47241720 % 1458235 $ 25EBSEBQE 3 B054,208 § (54,849,001} § 650,177,889
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Genesls Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information

Year Ended June 30, 2011

GHS GHS Obligated
lowa Klingla Eliminstions Group *
Change in unresiricted nat assets:
Unrestricted ravenue:
Net patient aervice revenue 3 425304354 % 90,2352398 3§ (501,483 § 516,138,269
Othar sendca revenus, net B 980,704 - 88,704
Medical office buliding rental revenuoe - - - -
Cther revenus 15,172 670 2,920,434 {665, 367) 17 427937
Total revenue A4 AT7 224 94,245,536 {1,168, 850} 534,555,810
Expanses:
Salares end wages 186,004,027 28,197,227 - 217295254
Empiayee banefits 46,577 460 0,505,022 (32,782) 53,049,720
Coniracted professionsls ond services 33,914,573 8,574,662 {624,382) 30,858,853
Supplies 76,034,429 14,00%,709 (157.973) 89,878,165
Cther expanyes 41,209,292 23,481,509 (351,733) 64,330,068
Previslon for bad debls 21,627,108 5,084,974 . 27,612,082
Interasi 4,282,725 445,255 - 4707 580
Depreciation and izatlon 27.881.858 2,450,479 - 1,732,337
Total expanses 440,805 472 89,045 837 (1,184,850) 528,484,459
QOperating Income (loss) B74,752 5,199,690 - §,071.451
Monoparating geins and {losses);
Interest and dividend tnecome and realized geing (osses) on sales of Invesiments 5,863,058 358,940 - 7,223,004
Currant year change In unresfized gains on frading securiies 18,563,225 - . 12,583,225
Cthar nonoparating Income {expsnes) 573,724 322,518 - 896,238
Excess of fair valus over equily scquired for GenGasiro, LLG 14,058 732 - - 14,958,732
Nonoparating galns and {losses) 40,958,737 882,463 - 41,641,200
Excess of revanue over (under] oxpensas bafore
aquity in net incoma of subsidlaries 41,830,409 5,862,182 - 47,712,851
Equity [n net income of aubsidiaries 597,354 386,200 - 583,044
Excuss of ravenun over (undar] sxpansas 42,427,643 6,268,452 . 48,696,295
Less excess of falr value over aqudty acquirsd for GenGastro, LLC aftributable
to nonconirolling intaresis - - -
Less excass of revenua over expensss atiributable to noncontralling triecests - - - -
Excess of revanus over sxpensas stirfbutable
to Genesls Health Systemn 42,427,043 8,268,452 - 45,858,295
Consofidate GanGastro, LLC . - - -
Excess of falr valun over equity acqulred for GanGestro, LLE attribulable
to noncontreling Interasts - - -
Incoma inted with trolling imerests . - - -
Distibutiona te noncontrolling interests - . - -
Contribulions ks {from) affillates for capital expendiures 2,511,419 - - 2,511,419
Net ansets relossed from restrictions, for caphtal expandiures . . - *
Change In unrecognized funded status of reliramant plan 20,918,020 - - 20,918,020
Increase {decrenns] In unrestiricted net assota 65,857,282 6,268,452 . 72,1257
Change |n tempararily restricted nel assets:
Contributions, investment income and other 44,820 - B 44928
Nat assels raleased from restrictions, yaed for operutions - - - -
Mel gssels rel d from restriciions, for capital expenditure - - - -
Change in inlerest in net assats of Foundation 3,138,004 (351,570) - 2,704,634
Increass {decrease) In tempararlly restrictsd et asvots 3,184,832 (351.870) - 2,826,862
Change in permananily restricted net aayets,
contributions, Investmert income and olhar - 10,987 - 10,087
Increase {Cecresss) In net assats 3 60039414 % 5927.48¢ 3§ - _3 ?459662583

* The Obfigated Group Inciudes Genesls Health System - lowa {an lowa nonprofil corporation} and Genesls Health System - lliinots (an Ulinols not-for-

profit carporation).
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Ganesis

Heatth
System
Gunesis Wiwrkers' Wiserlcordia
Hewsfih Wini . The Larson Compensation ASsUranca Davenport
Sarvtces Hosphal GenGenrg, GCearntar GenVeniures, Plan Campany, SRS
Foundatian Faundation LLC Pearinership InG. and Trust Lid, Leasing, LLC Elfmingtions Toto
5 . < $3150847 S «§ B0 3 N - % -3 [4AR4B81) § 515041430
- - - - 8,937,080 - - 1,657,073 - 11,583,867
- - - 1,224,462 8,067,520 - - . (7.840,527} 1471 455
1,028,721 458,746 . 303 173,008 2,042,500 3,482 136 - {10,564,151% 14,050,197
1028701 459,746 3,150,042 1,224 765 17,434 B15 2,042,500 3,482,138 1,857 073 {22,860.350) 542 145049
312,840 104 B0% 208,127 - 5,245,378 - . - - 221,108,468
43,628 7485 147,328 - 1,150,340 - - - {2,431) 54,388,072
101,925 - 96,010 108,595 427 755 227,673 . 10,718 - 40,843,532
54,503 2,855 113,504 1,747 311,247 - . - {d,200,436) 88,171,686
1,364,312 498 858 382,247 3s2.518 5,518,991 1,614,822 1482138 363,789 {17,774 698} 61,480,887
37,502 . - - 142 360 - - - . 27,792,024
10,252 2,847 25 54,823 851,300 - - 487,853 {911,686) 5,303,364
- - 76,827 164,674 3,112,800 - - 1,092,039 . 38,178,677
1,855,053 514,885 Gk, 200 693,157 17,560,163 2,042 500 3,482,136 1,954 477 (22,889,359) 535,251,690
{026,332) {155,149) 2,158,433 531,608 {525, 348) - - (207,404) - 6,655,250
242 814 - - - 40,332 273,652 - - - 7,780,602
231,004 121,143 - - - 93,292 . - - 19,008,724
437,647 75,405 - - (81,150 {740,731) . 1461 - 583,871
. . . . . . . 9,808,732 24,785,454
§12,355 186,513 . - {40,818} {373,587} - 1,481 9,806,732 52,143,561
(13.970 41,359 2,156,433 531,608 (568,166 (373,587) - {285.042) 9.006,732 58,099,120
. - - - - . - - {93,844 -
(12,977 41,388 2,156,433 531,608 {568,158) {373,587) . {295,843} 4,823,058 5B.&09,120
- - - - . - D . {9,806,732) {9.808,732}
- . - - . . - {B42,288) {842,289)
{13,977} 41,289 2,158,433 331,808 (586,188} (372.587) - {265,043) {1.825,832) 48,350,100
- - - - - - - . 483,268 493,289
- - - - - - . - 9,008,732 9,806,732
. - - . - . - - 42,280 B42,286
. - - - - . - - (743,310} (Fa3 30
(2,511,418} - - . - . . - -
2,511,419 - - - - - - - - 2,511,419
- - - - - - . - - - 20,818,020
(13.977) 41,368 2,158 433 531,608 {5688, 186) (372.587) - (265,843) 8,573,048 82,178,517
3.685018 106,157 - - . - . - . 3818401
(1,024,579} (458,127) - - - - - {1,462 708)
{2.511.418) - - - . . - N . {2.511,419)
- - - - ~ - - + 2,701.217) 83,717
i38.318 (354.970) - - - - - . RIM217 (94,007}
241,328 10,987 - - - . . - (10,867} 252,313
355667 F {200614) § 2156430 §  sS31.608 § (S86.166) (373587 % -__§ (255842 5250842 % 8233662
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Genesis Health System
and Related Organizations

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets Information
Year Ended June 34, 2010

GHS GHS Obligeind
lowa 1finoly Ellminations Group *
Chenge fn unrestricted nel assets:
Unrestdcied revenuas:
Net patisnt gervice revenue $ 435040450 % 92,548,135 3% {487308) $ 528,521,316
Othar service revenve, net - 1,200,532 - 1,803,532
Meadical office building renial revenue - - - -
Other revenue 18,191,478 3,122,989 1,817,320} 17 497127
Total revenus 452,231,658 97,274 6358 {2,284,629) 547,224,975
Expensas:
Salardes and wages 181,201,160 27,997,988 - 205,186,128
Employes bensfits 44,538,504 6,426,016 {32,756) 51,332,164
Goniracied professionals and senvices 38,800,610 §,432,764 (634,477} 42,590,957
Supplies 78,243,121 13,139,024 (158,015} 92,224,130
Otlhar expanses 41,027 2684 22,567,513 {1.459,381) 53,085,408
Provision for bad dabts 27,401 892 7,960,850 . 35,302,742
Intere st 4,418,926 1,171,670 - 5,500,598
Deprecistion and smertizetion 28,953,192 3,647,575 - 32,600,767
Total expanses 444 885,166 £9,403,360 (2,284,623) 532,003,920
Crpersting Incoms (loss) 7, 3G, 758 7.571,256 - 15,218,055
Noncperating gaing and (losses):
Interest and dividend Income and realized gains (losaes) on sales of imvesiments 11,127,240 118,687 - 11,245,927
Current year change In unrealized gains {losses) on trading secyritias 12,494,500 - - 12,481,900
Qiher nonoperating income {axpunse) (237,087} {75,663} - (312,750)
Losg on extinguishment of debt ' {1,514 471} . - (1,514,471}
Nonopsrating gains and {| ] 21,387 582 43,024 - 21,910,806
Excess of evenus over funder) sxpanses before
squity In nat Incoms {loss) of subsidlaries 20,214,381 7,514,280 - 37,128,861
Equily In net income {logs) of aubsidiaries {358, 454) 325,897 - {32,457)
Excess of revenun over (under} oxpensos 28,855,627 8,240,277 - 37,096,204
Less excass of revenua over sxp attributable to noncontralling intenests - . . o
Excess of revanua over (under} sxp attributabie
to Genesis Health System 28,855,927 8,240,277 - 37,008,204
Income associated with noncentrolling intorests - . . -
Dis iony to Yrolling i - - - .
Transfers (10) from relaied orgnizations 146,142 {146,142 - -
Changa in unrecagnized fundsed sietus of retirement plan {13,457,401) - . (13,457,401}
Incrasse [decrensa) In unrestrictod net kssety 15,544 6658 8,084,135 - 23,630,803
Change in temporarily restricted not assets:
Contributians, investment income and other (97.244) - - {97, 244)
Net ass6!s releasad from restictions, used for operallons - - - -
Change In Inferest in net assats of Foundailon 765,532 AB.614 - BD4, 545
increaso In temporarity restricted net assots 664,588 36,514 - 707,202
Change tn permanently restricted nat sssats,
conifbutions, Investment income and other - 11,305 . 11,305
Incranss (dacrease) in net asaets $ 16,213,268 § B 144054 3 - 3 24=35T!310

* The Otligated Group includes Genesls Hoealth System ~ lowa (an lowa nonprafit comporation) and Genesls Health System — iinois {an (linols net-for-
profit corporafion),
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Geonesis

Haalih
System
Genesis Workers' Wisericordia
Health Mird Tha Larson Compansation As: G o
Services Hospital Centar GenVentures, Plan Company, SRS
Foundation Foundation Partnership Inc, and Trust Ltd, Lessing, LLC Eliminations Totsl
s . s .3 s A - - .8 [A398607) $ 524,122709
- - - 9,869,149 - - 1,954,425 - 13,027,108
- - 1,144,485 7730618 - - - (7.474.968) 1,400, 144
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=%, STATE OF ILLINOIS
SHEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

2> 7' 525 WEST JEFFERSON ST. ® SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62761 #(217) 782-3516 FAX: (217) 785-4111
May 30, 2012

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Lynn Gordon

Ungaretti & Harris

Three First National Plaza
70 West Madison- Suite 3500
Chicago, Ilinois 60602-4224

RE:  Certificate of Exemption Applications for Change of Ownership - E-003-012,
E-004-12

Dear Mr. Gordon;

Thank you for your correspondence dated May 9, 2012. We are unable to deem exemption
applications # E-003-12 and #E-004-12 complete at this time. Please provide the following:

» A complete explanation of why an dption agreement to purchase Mercer County
Hospital and Mercer County Nursing Home by Genesis Health System was signed
without the approval of the Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board (“State
Board”).

e The complete option agreement with all schedules and exhibits. The State Board
requires that the complete transaction documents be submitted and available for review

for all change of ownership applications.

» Please complete the CON assessment form that is attached for the modernization project
that has been identified in your May 9, 2012 submittal.

Should you have any questions, please contact me at (217) 782-3516.

Sincerely,

fubey R

Courtney R. Avery, Administrator
Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board




